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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for April the 4 th is
now in session, the time is 9:04. Good morning, Members. At this time the Chair would like to
recognize the Members that are here this morning. We do have Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning and aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha, and joining us at this time is our Council Chairman Mr. Mateo.
Welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excused at this time is Member Hokama. This morning, Members, from the
Administration we do have Adrianne Heely, Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MS. HEELY: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz; our Economic
Developer...Development Coordinator Teena Rasmussen. Supporting the Committee this
morning, we do have Scott Kaneshina, Michele Yoshimura, as well as Camille Sakamoto.
Members, we do have one person signed up for public testimony this morning. And we gonna
be covering both the Mayor's and the Managing Director's Offices today. As you all know, we
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have a public hearing in Hana tonight at Helene Hall, 6:00. So Chair's intention is to complete
as, you know, the Mayor's Office, as well as the Department of Management this morning.
Hopefully we can do that, otherwise, we'll bring them in again. So, Members, again we do have
one person signed up for public testimony. Chair will receive testimony. Those that are
providing testimony this morning, you have three minutes to provide your testimony, the Chair
will give...allow you one minute to conclude, and when you come up if you can state your name,
the organization that you represent, the Chair as well as the Committee would appreciate that.
Before we start public testimony this morning, if everyone of us can turn off our cell phones or
put it on silent mode. Thank you. The person that signed up for public testimony this morning is
James Nobriga. Good morning, Mr. Nobriga.
ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. I 1-80)
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

MR. NOBRIGA: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla, Vice-Chairman Hokama, Maui County
Members. My name is James Nobriga, I'm with the West Maui Soil and Water Conservation
Districts. And I would like to start out, first of all, to thank the Council for their continued
support of the West...Maui Soil and Water Conservation Districts. I'm here to testify for
continued funding for the four Soil and Water Conservation Districts on Maui. The purpose of
this request is to continue to carry out Soil and Water Conservation programs by the four
volunteer boards on the island of Maui. I submitted a written testimony, so I will not bore you
and read through it all.
Historically, we have received Clerical Support funds for about 20 years now. Throughout the
20 years, I believe funding for this position was raised three times. Currently, the Clerical
Support grant is $40,000. This amount remained the same for about three years. At this time,
we would appreciate your support to increase Clerical Grant Funds to $50,000 as proposed in the
Economic Development Program—Line Item Grants Summary.
A volunteer board cannot adequately provide enough time to initiate, implement, and support
this program. I hereby request your approval for continued funding to provide clerical and
technical support for the four Maui Soil and Water Conservation Districts, to better serve the
farmers, ranchers, land users, civic groups, and government agencies on State and Federal
programs relating to water quality and conservation of our natural resource. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nobriga. I have a question, the technical support on
that...Clerical Technical Support. This is for the four Soil and Water Conservation Districts?
MR. NOBRIGA: For the island of Maui, yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Nobriga at this time?
Seeing none, again thank you very much. You guys had a very good display Saturday morning.
MR. NOBRIGA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I appreciate that. Okay, thank you.
MR. NOBRIGA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, Mr. Nobriga was the only person signed up for public testimony
this morning. Is there anyone that would like to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing
none, if there is no objections, the Chair will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, this morning, again we do have the Department of...the Office of
the Mayor. In your proposed Bill it's on Page 6 and 7, in your program budget it's Page, starting
with Page 13-1, in your Budget Details, starting on Page 11-1, and for your information the
Budget request for this area-----Office of the Mayor is $10,408,957.00. At this time the Chair
would like to provide the Budget Director with opening comments.

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and the Committee Members. Unfortunately, the Mayor was not able
to make it this morning, him and Chief of Staff, Herman Andaya were called to Honolulu, so I'll
be representing the Office of the Mayor. The Office of the Mayor is made up of an
Administration Program which is the, basically the front Office of the Mayor. They
communicate with the public on issues, the Executive Assistants and other Support Staff are held
in that office. It also includes the Budget Office, which is of course myself and my staff and the
Communications Office; our Communications Director Rod Antone and his one staff person, so
that is the basis of the Administration Program. We also have under the Office of the Mayor, the
Office of Economic Development, which you'll be hearing from Teena Rasmussen, regarding
her program and her program budget. It also includes Grant...the Community Development
Block Grant, which is a completely grant funded operation which you also reviewed recently, the
CDBG proposal and passed out the CDBG grant resolution. So, Mr. Chair, for the
Administration Program the, the main thing, main operations cost of that is Salaries and Wages.
We have reduced the request for Salaries and Wages in the Administration Program by
8.2 percent or $133,000 and we've reduced the request for Operations by $3,500 or 1.3 percent.
So total negative in the Administration Program of $137,186 or 7.1 percent decrease in the size
of the Office of the Mayor. If you have any questions...major budget item in that is $65,000
grant to Akaku, for boards and commissions. I don't know if you wanna discuss that now or

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

when we do Grants, we'll be prepared to discuss it when we do the Grant Operations
Expenditures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So that's the overview for the Mayor's Office at this time or do
you have another overview?
MR. BAZ: For the Administration Program that would be it, Mr. Chair. If you wanted to ask questions
regarding the specifically Administration Program, otherwise we can go directly into the Office
of Economic Development, if you'd like.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine thank you. Okay, Members, you've heard the Budget Director. At
this time the Chair would like to recognize Member Hokama. Good morning. Let's see, okay.
We'll go ahead and ask questions...oh, first of all we'll review the Administration Program,
Salaries and Wages for the Mayor's Office. Mr. Mateo, if you have any questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Not in this area, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: None at this time, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys have a problem with EP counts?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Hokama, the Mayor's Office isn't subject to the Council's...Chartered EP count
regulations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I know that. My question is, is there a problem to have EP counts?
MR. BAZ: Is there a problem to have EP counts?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: We have...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I got no problems showing Council EP counts. You guys have a problem
showing the Mayor's EP counts?
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MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, we can get that information to you if you'd like the EP counts of the Mayor's
Office.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That would be good, if you can provide this Committee with your EP counts
for the Mayor's Office.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Chairman, you know -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --just to be fair, I, I think it's only fair if the, if the Mayor wants we should
be able to share our EP counts with the, the Mayor's people. I think that's only fair. I think the
taxpayers should know what we asking them to pay for. So I don't have a problem providing
those type of information to the, to the residents, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Administration will provide that EP counts to this Committee
for review. Any more questions, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, just on if, if, if, if A Account and Personnel right, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, just the A Account at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman, I'm good at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just a couple questions on Page 11-3 of the
salary, or the wages...salary and wages detail. You have minus 74,000 in the Fiscal 2011
Budget, and then zero, and then it...the change amount you say it's a positive 74,000, how does
that work out?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair and Councilmember Couch, that is the salary adjustment for furloughs, Mayor's
Office is subject to furloughs as well. So as we are reinstating the furlough day for the rest of the
County, we are also reinstating the furlough day for the Mayor's Office.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so wouldn't there be a $74,000 in the FY 2012 request?
MR. BAZ: No. The salary adjustment was a negative for FY '11, and we are not including a salary
adjustment for FY '12, so it'd be zero.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I see there's significant reductions in the
Administration salaries, but I notice inside there one Executive Assistant is receiving an
18 percent salary increase, while the rest is kind...it seems curious that one Assistant, only one
out of everyone would receive that increase and that's on 11-2.
MR. BAZ: And Mr. Chair and Council Members, from my understanding that is for the Chief of Staff.
It's a position that did not exist in its capacity last year.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And I have one more question, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That the last couple of years, the US Conference of Mayors, the fees
that we pay increased from $5,000 to $12,000. What are we getting for our $12,000?
MR. BAZ: When we, Mr. Chair, Operations, we can discuss that, discuss that with the Mayor and
maybe get back to you in writing, as far...if you'd like a breakdown of what the US Conference
of Mayor's Program entails.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That would be in 11-5, for your information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Chair have couple questions. You know, I know the 2011
Budget for several positions were at a level that was given to them, you know, in the four years
that they been with the previous Administration. They started off at a lower level and I see that
this Administration, looking at some of the positions, they're starting off at a level of what was
budgeted for 2011. Can you explain the rationale in regards to receiving those kind of payment?
-7-
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MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I guess I'd like to get back to you since I wasn't involved in the hiring or setting
of pay for the Staff. I'd like to get back to you in writing regarding those questions. There are,
are very few that have been set at the level, FY '11 level salaries, as you can tell, and the
majority of them have been reduced significantly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, looking at the...some of the positions in the Mayor's Office, yeah,
those positions, you know, looking at the reduction I'm assuming that, and I hate to assume that
because of their I guess newness in the Department they're starting off at a lower level. And
then the other question maybe you can provide me with some answers is the Chief of Staff.
What is the responsibility of the Chief of Staff? Yeah, and I know you have an Office Manager
also, you know, I just wanna get a real good grasp as far as the Administration's, you know,
overall budget request and, and the type of responsibilities for some of those positions.
Member...
MR. BAZ: Mister...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if, if you don't mind what I'd like to do is to provide you with the position
descriptions of the Chief of Staff and the, the various positions within the Administration Office,
if you're interested in what their duties are. The Chief of Staff reports directly to the Mayor, he
oversees myself, Budget Director, our Communications Director, Rod Antone, as well as all of
the Executive Assistants and the Office Manager. And then the Office Manager is the one that
from my understanding manages the, the office itself, the Clerks and all of the boards and
commissions support staff, and those kind of items.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You have a diagram in regards to the relationship that you just
mentioned to me? Like a flow chart?
MR. BAZ: The, the flow chart on Page 13-1 of the Program Budget explains the Chief of Staff, who
oversees the, the five basic areas of the Office of Mayor. And...you can...so that's basically his,
his purview, includes the Office of Economic Development and Community Development Block
Grant.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing... oh, Member
Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, so the answer is we already have the organizational structure Chairman,
correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: According to 13-1.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we going make decisions based on this structure?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's all I need to know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Besides...one other thing, Chairman. Was there...is there any contractual
requirements need to be adjusted to go from all the EM-05s to the SR ranges?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know. Staff would you know?
MR. KANESHINA: No, they're not bound by contract, but perhaps we could ask DPS when they come
in later on in this discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Okay, don't lose that question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can we...would you...on behalf of the Committee would you mind sending
that down so that we can have them prepared to answer the question -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --upon -CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --review, Chairman? That's it in the Salary and Wages at this time,
Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, thank you. Mr. Baz, you, you say that the Chief of Staff...isn't
that the same thing as what used to be the Senior Executive Assistant, but with a little bit more
duties? Because I notice it's an Executive Assistant II, so essentially it's the, the Senior
Executive Assistant that, that used to be that, that position and with a little bit more
responsibilities?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair and Council Member, I'm not sure what the Senior Executive Assistant did before
since I was not a part of any previous Administration. This, like I said, this Chief of Staff
oversees all of the coordinators as well as myself and Communications Office and the Office
Manager.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, it sounds like the same thing, thanks.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on the A Account? Thank you. So
we go to the B Account—Operations. Member White if you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
NOTE: Pause.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't know if...maybe you didn't hear but I said no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was waiting and everybody said nothing. Okay. Alright, thank
you, Chair. I noticed the biggest drop, I mean I noticed a lot of it was numbers being moved
around, but the biggest drop was in Professional Services, 6132, yeah, on 11-4. I'm going the
right place, yeah? Okay. Yeah. Okay. Maybe, Mr. Baz, you can explain what that tremendous
drop was.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair and Committee Members, the details of the Administration budget are, includes
some projected, you know, and items that maybe had been put in for purposes that new
Administration was not quite aware of. When we looked at the budget and what we're
projecting as possible projects for this upcoming fiscal year, we decided that this budget would
be appropriate, and one of the things that Mayor Arakawa wanted to do was to provide the grant
to Akaku for their recording of the, their recording of the boards and commissions meetings. So
in an effort to remain less than revenue neutral and actually reduce the Office of the Mayor's
budget, we reduced some areas that we saw we might be able to reduce and put in that grant to
Akaku.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so...but you didn't answer me, what was the Professional
Services, what was that, I mean, was that in, or you don't have any idea? If you don't -MR. BAZ: Yeah...I, I...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I'll just ask that . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. BAZ: Yeah I, I, I -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. BAZ: --don't know what the plans of the prior Administration were for that item.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that's fair enough.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's fair enough. And then, Chair, we'll ask for if we can ask
the question why, why that drop. And then on the miscellaneous you dropped down a lot too
but, you know, that one I understand a lot of times you can play with miscellaneous 'cause that's
exactly what it is, miscellaneous. No one knows except when if there's a need put it in
miscellaneous.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Isn't that true?
MR. BAZ: Yes, there are, you know, especially for the Office of the Mayor there are gonna be items
that come up that throughout the year that needs to be met, you know, community areas that, that
in emergency's and things that come up. And, Mr. Chair, that's why these items are in there as
kind of ambiguous amounts, but it's a program budget so, you know, we have the ability to, to
move stuff around as we see fit. The only thing we did do in the Administration Budget that is
very different is the grant to Akaku, as we had monies in there in the past that had been reduced
the last couple of years. We wanted to make sure that, that got put in there so that we could meet
the request of the Community to have those boards and commission meetings televised.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the last question is, you know, there's another big
drop in this Post Election Expense, okay, and that was on 11-5 on the very top of the page, yeah.
MR. BAZ: Actually, if you look at that 6312 Post Election Expense there are...there was no budget in
'11, no actual in '10 and no request in '12, it's flat. That line that you're seeing, the total
903...903013 Administration is for the total Administration Program itself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I apologize. Okay, it kinda...the way you look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I looked at it the same way.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you know, excuse me, it kind of looked like that was the
line.
MR. BAZ: I know, I understand. Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I apologize.
MR. BAZ: No, no problem, that's why I figure I should clear it up because it does look like that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 'cause Mr. White and I saw the same thing.
. . . (laughter).. .
MR. BAZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, thank you very much, Chair, I'll allow other Members
to ask questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Before I call on Mr. Hokama, couple questions. In regards
to the Professional Services of, you know, reducing to $60,000. You mentioned or that $60,000,
for the Akaku boards and commission meetings. At the time the $60,000 was allocated to
Professional Services for Akaku, now it's being moved to the grant side, $65,000.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, when I was looking, trying to figure out the historical of that 'cause I had
remembered it had been appropriated 60, 65,000 to Akaku. They actually had an Index Code
903043 which had existed and that's where the previous appropriation had been put into it, from
what it looks like when they reduced that appropriation out of the Akaku Index Code they moved
it up into the admin program, that's all I could tell from the historical information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. In regards to those type of services, do we go out for RFP like the
Council Services do?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the Mayor has requested this be a grant to Akaku. They are an eligible
non-profit, they can receive grants from the County, and he has chosen to make this a grant to
Akaku to provide their services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that's his decision to go through a grant process?
MR. BAZ: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We can change it if you want, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's his request, a grant, but we can make it so it's a general appropriation
for RFP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's not a problem. Is there a problem that we have to make a grant?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't think so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, they can compete, they can compete. I'm, I'm, I'm ready to adjust
whenever you are, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Questions? Ms. Cochran?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, go back.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure , we'll have a short recess subject to the call of the Chair. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

9:30 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:31 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is reconvened.
Got a question for Corporation Counsel at this time. We do have couple Members that are on the
Board of Akaku, and is there any issues in regards to, you know, we recognizing both Council
Members here this morning, but I understand that we may have an issue during voting.
MS. HEELY: Good morning, Mr. Chair, mahalo, and good morning, Committee Members. Yes, I
believe your Council rules may speak to when there's decision making and voting and if there's
possible conflicts of interest and disclosure. I know disclosure, if anything, would be mandatory,
disclose the potential conflict of interest and I believe previous Board of Ethics decisions have
issued some opinions speaking to this specific issue. At the Committee level, abstain from
voting and disclose the conflict and at the full Council level, because it was addressed at the
Committee level, you can proceed with voting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and we, we did receive a communication from our Council
Chair in regards to sitting Council Members should be, you know, resign... should resign from
those boards and commission, that we were at one time involved with, so thank you.
MS. HEELY: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I want to disclose that I am a Board Member of
Akaku, I'm the Vice-Chair of the, the board and, but I do want to comment on the grant versus
RFP. There would be an issue with the ownership of the equipment and a lot of other things just
so you know which would raise the cost on an RFP.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, and I, too, am a Board Member of Akaku, so I just want
to disclose that at this point, but other than that no questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair, and I am not a member of the Akaku
Board.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not that I wouldn't like to be 'cause I think they're a wonderful
organization. Chair, having had some experience with this whole RFP business, I, for one,
would like to see a grant to Akaku. And I liked to see that for the reason that Akaku in my
opinion is the only agency on Maui who has the ability to do what they're doing. And they live
in this state of constant concern about survival, planning, hiring, and preparing to do the work
they do in the community, because they are always with this sword hanging over their head
about whether or not they're going to have funding.
I don't know why it would be troublesome to give them a grant, we give a lot of grants to a lot of
people. And I, for one, would much prefer to see a line item grant in here that says Akaku, so we
don't get into all of this questions and bidding problems, and all of the things we've been going
through lately, especially with a service that is so well done in our community. I'm sorry, but I
cannot imagine Maui without Akaku at this point.
The other question that I have bigger than the bid in the RFP is the $65,000, does anybody have
an idea of what that buys? You know there's a lot going on in the community that I think would
be so great if we had it taped and shown on Akaku. We used to do a lot more and we've cut way
back and I think the community really, really loves having Akaku. I mean I don't know if it's
just me but I think all of us, no matter where we go, we hear from people who say, oh, I watched
this on Akaku, I saw that on Akaku, thank you for having it on Akaku because that's the only time
that we can watch, 'cause people cannot come here and it's the really best public access that we
have. So can somebody tell me what is $65,000 going to buy?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, we were going to be prepared to discuss that at the Grant discussion when we go
through the grants and I would be happy to share that information at that time if you don't mind.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, but let's not lose it 'cause I really wanna know.
-14-
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MR. BAZ: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I'm also not a member of the Board of Akaku.
However, just for information I was on the Council and I'm the one that actually proposed that
$65,000 be put as a line item. So the community could hear boards and commissions, Planning
Commissions, and the other boards, and that's our time that, that was put there as a line item
because the Council at that time felt it was really important that the community could hear,
especially the Planning Commission that we came off of, because they were not televised before
then. In 11-11 we show a 35 percent increase in Culture and Arts grants, we show a
20 percent...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me, Mr. Carroll, we, we gonna cover grants later on.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought we were talking about grants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we need to cover the various programs in the Mayor's Office and then
we'll go into Grants, probably not today but some other time.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I will wait patiently. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Member Mateo, no questions? Any more questions for
the Department regarding the B Account? If not, we go into Equipment...there's no change.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions. I see what they want. No, no problems,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No thanks, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. That concludes the Administration Program. We go into
Economic Development and we do have the Coordinator with us this morning, Ms. Teena
Rasmussen. If, Teena, if you wanna give a overview regarding the Economic Development
Program.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Thank you. My first time out here so be, be easy on me. . . . (laughter).. .
We have a, we are showing, as you can see, a slight increase in the Economic Development side
of the Administration Budget, of an increase of 12,000. We have a couple major changes that
we're doing with our budget this year. We have decided to move the Molokai Resource Center,
the Business Resource Center, and the Maui Business Resource Center into the Administration
Budget this year. In the past, Molokai Business Resource Center has been put with the Molokai
Grant, and the Maui Business Resource Center has been put with the Small Business Grant. And
so we decided because they have been so successful, we have regular dedicated Staff to those
two resource centers, they do have of course Administration budgets because they both have
leases, and they have regular operating costs that they have to incur, so we thought it would be
cleaner and better to move them over to the Administration budgets.
Now as far as the increase for our budget, we increased for the reason at the time we're preparing
this, we were renegotiating two leases. We did not know what the outcome of that, we still don't
know what the outcome is on, on them. They are, they are close, but we don't know. We
budgeted for extra fuel mileage because fuel costs were going up radically and also for electricity
costs, because we have essentially three offices with the two resource centers and our office at
One Main Plaza, and then the last item that we budgeted an increase for was the potential for
travel regarding the APEC Conferences or the APEC Committee. As the OED Coordinator I
have, I have been placed on the APEC Host Committee in Honolulu, so that's requiring travel at
least once to two times per month. That was something that we didn't have to incur last year. Of
course I wasn't there last year but it wasn't going on last year. So we were just adding a
contingency for all of those types of things. At this point, you know, we don't know if we

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

overestimated, or underestimated, I'm sure we did...I'm sure we're going to be fine and we're
not going to overspend, but I just wanted to make sure that we were covered for those items.
And you will see, because we did move the administration of the Business Resource Centers
over, you will see when you get...when we get to the Grants Program at the end of the month,
you'll see that Small Business Promotion looks like a huge drop. The Molokai money looks like
a huge drop, but it's really not because those included those Administration Budgets. So, if you
have any questions I'll be happy to answer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, questions on the A account?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I know what they did, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to, to ask in, in looking at
some of the positions, there's specific positions for Stenographers, and that seems like something
that had gone out of the door a couple of years ago and your Department still shows three
different Stenographers. Can you tell me what the use of those positions, how these positions are
used?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, we actually have four. Is that right, yeah? Oh, one is grant funded, right?
Okay. . . .(speaking to Mr. Baz). . . Yes, so we do have...they are...and it is a term that should
be changed I think, you know, because it's not...I mean they're really Administrative Assistants,
and I think they should be changed to that. But I think we're all working on redefining our, you
know, making sure we get our definitions of what the employees do and get it a little bit more
updated. But basically, these are the two Clerk positions in my office are...they are the Front
Desk Clerks, they assist each, each of them has Program Grant Specialists assigned to them, and
then one of them is in the Resource Center in Molokai and one of them is in the Resource Center
on, on the, at the Maui Office and then...that's three, but the, the fourth one is funded partially
by the WIA Grant, the Workforce Investment Act Grant.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So it has nothing to do with the skill level of a Stenographer?
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, they, I mean they have to do all kinds of office...I mean they are
Administrative Assistants, that would be the best; they have to type, they have to answer phones,
they're receptionist, they do all kind...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But Stenography is a whole different type of a -MS. RASMUSSEN: Exactly, exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --requirement. And just one more question, Mr. Chairman. I, I noticed
that one of your positions from the Workforce Investment Group is funded in part through grant?
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Are there any other listings that we show on 11-8 that is also funded by
grant?
MS. RASMUSSEN: The other...we have three positions totally funded by grants but they're not on this
list.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Tell me what they are, please.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We have the Hawaii Tourism Authority Grant, that is a three-quarters position, and
then we have two full-time positions with the Workforce Investment Act.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So they not located on this sheet then?
MS. RASMUSSEN: They're in the Grant Revenue section.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant Revenue side, okay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No questions, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions at this time, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell us why would you folks still recommend us funding State
agency requests in this current times? Like CTAHR, MCC Nursing.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh. Are we taking that up?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're gonna take 'em up at...during grants.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We still on Salaries, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman, no, no questions at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll? Thank you. Okay, we go to Operations, the B Account. Kinda
lost...Mr. Hokama, you first.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Ms. Rasmussen, can you give the Committee some
understanding on why the Administration would recommend funding certain State things when
the State is doing the opposite in trying to take our TAT and everything else?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, I do...I, I mean I understand it's, it's, it's a fine line that we draw, but this
County has historically done this over, over the years. CTAHR, UH Maui College, we have,
those are two that I can think of right off the back, that we have funded from a County level and
they're really State, you know, they're really State functions. The reason is they are programs
that we've asked for something specific from them and so the County has decided to fund them
based on those programs. It's not...this money does not go to their General Funds, this is
program specific and I'll be happy to cover that in full, you know, as to what that money is
proposed for. But it's program specific to Maui and things that this community felt that, that
were important enough to add funding to those State agencies.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and I understand that when we had money. Obviously, it's not
important to the State departments 'cause they won't fund it.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause I can tell you now this year I'm very not open to non-County
requests. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Just curious, you know, we had a Sister City
come and visit us just a few day ago, and I'm looking at the, that section and Miscellaneous,
Other Costs at $8,000. I'm just curious what that entails, the use of that 8,000? If you have that.
MS. RASMUSSEN: That $8,000 goes to, it's basically kind of protocol type of items and then taking,
taking them to dinner, driving them around the island to visit various things. It is actually a very,
very small amount of money compared to what these Sister Cities spend, from what I
understand, on when we go visit them. And we, you know, we could probably get a little bit
better about, you know, how we treat our Sister City visitors when they do come. But we didn't
increase it, I think it certainly could be at some point increased.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. As I understand Mr. Hokama was nice enough to
provide, you know, the refreshments and what have you the other day, which was wonderful.
Prior Administration didn't really, you know, honor them so much, so yeah, I'd like to see us be,
you know, reciprocal in that way. They pretty much roll out the red carpet for us when we go to
their countries and cities, so thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just to remind the Members, kind of concentrate on the 11-9,
please, which is the B Account. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On 11-9, sir, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, most of the questions that I hearing right now -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --are basically grants, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Grants, yeah
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Carroll? Mr. Mateo? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions regarding the B Account?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one short one, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How much space are you, are you renting, Ms. Rasmussen, for that
$150,000?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I, you know, I apologize I don't know the square footage of all of our spaces. We
have two...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you share that, if, if you have it, please?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I, I will, yes, I'll definitely find that out for you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, because if it's like 5,000 square feet...
MS. RASMUSSEN: Because we have one on Molokai, we have the one at Maui Mall, and then we
have two, two offices at One Main Plaza.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One Main Plaza.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So...is the Molokai, facility the Kuhao Business Resource Center?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very... -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, talking about space, Mr. Baz, if you could provide the space that we
occupy at One Main Plaza. And when we talk about CIPs in regards to the Old Wailuku Post
Office, what is the square footage that can be accommodated at the Wailuku...the Old Wailuku
Post Office, once it's rehabilitated? So if you can provide that later on.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, just...we occupy approximately 22,000 square feet at One Main Plaza.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty-two thousand square feet?
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MR. BAZ: Twenty-two thousand and we can get, well not...well, when we talk about the CIP item we
can discuss.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Then we can discuss the Old Wailuku Post Office? Okay, thank you. Okay,
Members, any more questions on the B Account? Okay, we go to Equipment, none being
requested. So I guess that's it for you, Teena, for now until we come to the...oh, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, I think I wanted to follow up on the
Department's performance measures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, it's specifically the projections in the number of solar panels
placed on County facilities which is 1,000, and if you can tell me where this pipe dream is gonna
happen?
MS. RASMUSSEN: . . . (Laughter). . . Okay. Okay. We have...there was a grant that received by the
County was not executed at the time that we came into office, but it has now been executed and
there are, the, I think the bids are...they're very, they're very close to being let to actually make
this happen. So we're, we're just basically trying to use that money before it does expire,
because it will expire later this year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Was this all part of the Energy Study that the prior Administration had
worked on?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, this is...these were...this, this was one of the objectives that was in the
Energy Study. This is specifically being placed on County buildings -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So it...
MS. RASMUSSEN: --to reduce the electric cost of each building.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, if it's based on that study, then it's this building, couple of fire
stations, and Mitchell Pauole Center on Molokai.
MS. RASMUSSEN: There's...yeah, they're working on fire stations and I think he's talking...you
know, Doug, Doug McLeod is our Energy Commissioner and he can definitely answer all those
questions if you'd like when we come back and, and discuss the Grants.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: But, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: And we'll, we'll, we be holding him to that thousand number. . . . (laughter). .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, and, and, and the other is the 50 permits for film, for film
permits?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is it something already in the works or?
MS. RASMUSSEN: You know, it was a number that our film, our, our sports entertainment person has,
you know, we just wanted be able to kind of quantify that we do have film permits being let out
of our office every week and so she's actively working on, you know, trying to encourage those
kinds of things, so it was just a way to quantify it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Tell me what a film permit includes.
MS. RASMUSSEN: A film permit is, it can include several things. They have, you know, it depends
on the type of filming that they need to do, if they need to close a road that requires a bigger type
of permit, if they just need to go onto a beach, you know, that, that, requires a different kind of
permit. So it depends on the per project type of thing.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so your...
MS. RASMUSSEN: There's some as simple as their just, you know, taking pictures.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so your, your individual works with say like the Police
Department, DLNR for those specific closures, et cetera?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We, we do, we do, we help the, we help the company get through that, that process
so that they can, they can...because that's what it requires, and actually we are redoing our film
permit so that it is much more explanatory as to what the company is actually going to need. So
that we don't have to guess, you know, we're asking them now, do you, do you need road
closures? Do you need, you know, are you trying to direct traffic, for instance. You know,
there's, are you going to be on a public beach, are you going to be in a public park, you know,
those kind of questions. So we're trying to get much more specific about what their needs are.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then following up with Mr. Mateo's question, Ms. Rasmussen. Part of the
numbers is through the initiative of the Mayor's Film Studio Project or, or interest that he has
shown ... (inaudible). . .?
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MS. RASMUSSEN: No, that, that is independent of that project because that project is an unknown, we
don't know if it will happen or not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so this potential measurement of 50 is totally everything outside of
this film studio initiative?
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's, that's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very...
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members? Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I misspoke regarding the One Main Plaza occupancy it's a...One
Main Plaza is a 82,000 square foot facility and we occupy approximately 50 percent of that, so
be around 40,000 square feet or so of, of occupancy in that. The 22,000 square feet is what we
proposed would be available once we renovate the Old Post Office.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions regarding the B Account or Goals and
Objectives? Mr. Baz, as far as the Goals and Objectives or Performance Measures, you guys
going be taking a look at that, right, to make it more meaningful?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. We did in some of the departments and we will be going through the whole
rest of this Proposed Budget book and reviewing all Performance Objectives and Measures and
making sure that they are what we desire, what the community desires and how we're gonna
accomplish that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Before I leave the, this section...oh, not this section, but I wanna
go back to Administration Program in regards to the telephone 60154, telephone.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, that's Page 11-9?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: 11-4. I'm sorry, 11-9, yeah, you're right. Oh, I'm sorry, 11-4, you were
correct the first time.
MR. BAZ: For the Mayor's Office Administration?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 6152 cell phone zero out, and then on 6221...oh, 6154, you know, that
$18,000.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my understanding they budget a total of $18,000 for all telephones,
including cellular phones and the like.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, so...
MR. BAZ: Fax machines and office phones.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, when, when we go into the Countywide Telephone System Budget, I
don't know if that particular cost in that area Countywide also covers the cost, you know, for
everything else over here, so...
MR. BAZ: I'm not sure as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, something that you may have to take a look when we come to
Countywide Telephone System. Okay, Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, before you leave this particular area I'd like to follow up
with Administration regarding the MRA, the Maui Redevelopment Agency. That is a verifiable
entity. They've been doing several major projects through Wailuku Town, and the last one that
is still pending is the Municipal Parking area. And there is and there has been no budget
whatsoever, so I don't know what the Administration's directions is for this particular
organization and what the expectation is of an organization with absolutely no funding.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Council Chair Hokama, I mean...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Ai yah!
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter)..
MR. BAZ: Mateo, sorry. That was a...anyway, so I can tell you that the MRA supported by the, the
Department of Planning, however our Economic Development Coordinator would be happy to
discuss a little bit more about the MRA itself and, and it's area in Wailuku.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more, oh.. .
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I'd just like to add your point's well taken on that parking structure, and we have
received word from the EDA in Honolulu, Gail Fujita, that they...she feels strongly that there are
funding that we can still get from the Federal government for that parking structure. So we are
working right now, I have met with the MRA, I have met with the Mayor and we are working
now to bring, we're...the next step is to bring all the parties around the table and look at the
design and to find out where we are. We are going to do everything we can to make sure this
project goes forward.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So while the organization continued to, to labor, especially with
the municipal parking area, we still show no monies for them. So who's responsible for the
entity when they meet, when they have legal issues, when they have needs to send out
communications and correspondence, who's responsible?
MR. BAZ: Chair Mateo, like I mentioned, the Department of Planning does support them through staff
as well as clerical items. When the Department of Planning comes up you can ask them
specifically how they are able to support the MRA.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So then you know that there is a line item for the MRA out of
Planning's Budget?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I don't think it's a line item. I think it is the just their operations, similar to
support of boards and commissions throughout the, the County, where it may not be specifically
line item that this staff or this cost is for this boards and commission, but it is enveloped in the
administration of that Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chairman. And, and I hate jumping ahead but in
Planning there is 909036 Maui Redevelopment Agency, there is a specific area in the budget for
the Maui Redevelopment Agency. I always look forward to that, you know, Ms. Rasmussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Hey, okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I'm looking forward to all the rest of the information -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --`cause EDA...that Economic Development Office called me
also and said, where are you guys and don't you want it anymore so.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. Yeah, we are definitely on that case -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, please.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --and we're not gonna let this drop.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please and let me know what the . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. RASMUSSEN: I definitely will, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Victorino, I appreciate pointing that out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White? I'm sorry I skipped you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's alright. I know that the Mayor's very much looking into
efficiency in government and the, the...I'd just like to go back to when he was in his last year in
office 2006. There were eight less people in the Mayor's Office and so we've had a, an increase
of 44 percent in staffing and approximately 58 percent in the actual Salaries and Wages for the
Mayor's Office. And I'd just like, not really ask any questions as much as I'm just making a
comment, that as we go through the budget I'd like to see how this year's budget not only
compares to last year and a couple prior years but maybe several years prior, because we, we
have seen a significant increase in the number of County employees. And I think that needs to
be a concern for all of us because we are...when we hire somebody, we're making promises that
are, you know, have a very long tail with ongoing benefit packages. And for us to be able to
afford those packages down the road, we need to make sure that we're being, for lack of a better
word, parsimonious in the way we, we hand them out and take on additional employees.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You want to respond?
MR. BAZ: Just a short. The Mayor's Office, all of the appointees are, are not subject to Civil Service
requirements in those items, so they, they don't necessarily become like regular County
employees. We do understand your comment and, and the size of government has grown
significantly since Mayor Arakawa left office in 2006, and because of that the, the requirements
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of the Mayor's Office itself and the activity level has increased. I can tell you just in my, my
office, the Budget Office the, the size of the County budget, the amount of items that are in there
is significantly different than 2006 and it requires a different level of, of knowledge of my staff
for one thing and the level of staff for another. But Mayor Arakawa has implemented this
attrition policy specifically to target things that you're discussing, and your comments are. And
we look forward to implementing it and coming back to you next year with the results of that
attrition policy.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'd just like to point out that the...well, it
is a reduction of $135,000, it's still an increase of over half a million since 2006, so just
something we need to keep in mind. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? If not, the Chair is going to take a
mid-morning recess and then we'll reconvene 10:20. So this meeting is in recess and we'll
continue after that. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

10:07 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:22 a.m.

. (gavel). . . Okay, the Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
reconvened. Members, we got one more, one more area on Page 11-27, Grant Revenue, 'cause
we do have some head counts in that area, we'll take up Grant Revenue. Mr. Couch, you got any
questions for OED in regards to the Grant Revenue side, that's 11-27?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 11-27. What about 11-11? That's Grants, too, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 11-11? Expenditures, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, you're talking about revenue...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We giving away money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, got you, no thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll? Chairman Mateo? Mr. White?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, none at...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, maybe for Ms. Rasmussen. How confident is the County with
the Workforce Investment Act funds, those Federal dollars?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We're, we're not confident. But unfortunately, we have to proceed that the
program is going to exist, we do feel that they are warning us that there could be cutbacks.
We're hoping for the best. But the two and a half positions in our office are funded by that grant
and if the grant does not come through we will have to reduce that, the positions based on
whatever we get.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that, Ms. Rasmussen. Would that also be part of other
Federal funds you receive within your, your purview, like CDBG?
MR. BAZ: CDBG is a separate program, it's not under Ms. Rasmussen and Economic Development,
and they, yes, they are aware that there has been projected cuts proposed at the US Congress and
are subject to the same criteria and if the funding gets cut those positions get removed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You know, my, my main concern, people, this, this year is the
reliance or, or the ability for us to really receive what we've applied for, or you have been given
assurance that we qualified, and maybe...or awarded certain, certain kind of funding, but I'm not
sure exactly if we really gonna receive the awards. I mean, you know, every, every so many
weeks you watch the news, you know, the Congress is reducing big time and always domestic
programs is one of the first cut program areas versus military spending and other, other
requirements of the country. So have you any updates for us this morning, Mr. Baz, if anything?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Hokama. If you look at the Grant Revenue section of
the Proposed Budget you'll actually see that we did decrease the amount that we are expecting in
Grant Revenue by $47.9 million to a total of $54.6 million of Grant Revenue expected in 2012.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That...what is the total impact on, on positions please, Mr. Baz, with the,
with the adjustment? Same number, we losing X number of positions, warm bodies?
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MR. BAZ: From my understanding we are not losing any positions, these...they were projected a
significant amount of money in, in capital and some other grants that didn't materialize and we
have reduced the request.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, if I may just ask one more question -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the General Grant Revenue area please. You know HTA is a unique
entity and more unique since the State wants to take out our tourism monies, which helps to pay
for things like that. This grant money from HTA regarding like product enrichment and other
product development, which I noticed we not getting anything being asked for this year, you
confident you're gonna get that money?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, the money is, the money is funded through, they run interestingly enough on
a calendar year. They have given us the money for 2011. So we are good through the end of
December of 2011, and that pays for three quarters of a position. Now if...and it's odd because
they don't run concurrently with the State budget, so we know that we have the funding for
2011. Of course no one knows what's gonna happen to HTA. They don't know what's gonna
happen to them so then we, we will have to adjust based on what happens at the Legislature.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The money you receiving from HTA for what you know of at this point in
time, is for programs that have been submitted and approved -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes. That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --for each amount of funding.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Program...the grants have to be submitted prior to November of 2010, to be
included for funding for 2011. Those programs and I believe it's 27 events on Maui that will be
funded in 2011, things like First Fridays in Wailuku, there's several art, arts events, there's fairs,
festivals that sort of thing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there any matching from the County for, for part of that 27 projects or
events you mentioned?
MS. RASMUSSEN: No, interestingly enough HTA has a rule that if they receive County funding they
cannot receive HTA money. So these are free standing on HTA monies.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank, thank you very much for that. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Couch? Member Cochran? Member Baisa? Member
Carroll? Member Hok...Mateo?
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of purposes. Primarily, it's to allow the Department to be able to communicate some of their
needs with the Department of Management. It allows us to, to analyze what's happening there
without actually having to be in the trenches with them. And we do scrutinize these reports, we
go over them, and we utilize them as a management tool to be able to provide guidance and
assistance to the Departments as requested. We hold semi-monthly Team Director meetings,
where all Directors from all Departments are brought together to be able to allow us to
communicate directives and initiatives, as well as to be able to identify and address
cross-departmental concerns and issues. And I think most importantly, is to be able to share
innovative ideas and some of the actions being taken by other Department Directors which, you
know, may be applicable to other Departments and may help them to be able to run a more
efficient and productive and effective operation. We also hold monthly one-on-one departmental
meetings, so this is where the Directors will come in, we'll sit down with them and we will
discuss some of the challenges that they're having, and try to find out if there's ways we can
assist them and address this cross-departmental issues that do exist.
We're a large organization. We have 2500 employees with, with the 16 Departments, so you can
imagine that challenges would exist. We also conduct semi-annual performance evaluations.
This is, this should be nothing new. It, it is something that we feel is critical for Directors to be
able to understand what or, or to be able to receive feedback from the Department, as well as to
be able to become better managers. We see this as a way for us to be able to improve our overall
operations and to be able to make sure that we have the right people in the right jobs.
In addition, we provide, we do on-site inspections and visits, and these are important because
oftentimes when you go out, you really see what's happening by, by being there and interacting
with, with employees and being able to ask questions and to make sure that operations are
functioning properly. In fact, we just recently went on a site inspection of the Service Center
down at, at the Maui Mall, which was really good for us because it gave us a chance to, to walk
around, to interact with employees, to ask questions, to allow employees to ask questions of us,
and for us to get some really great feedback. You know, the, the, the one thing that's, that's
amazing working here in the County is how much our employees really care about their jobs and
wanting to do better jobs. And they have suggestions, and they just wanna know that someone's
listening, and we do listen. And in fact, we took back a number of, of suggestions that we
received just recently from this site visit, that hopefully will help to improve their, their ability to
operate and make them more effective.
We are also in the process...actually, we've already started doing this, but creating these targeted
training programs specifically for upper management. The County does a great job of providing
various different types of technical training, but we feel that there's more room to be able to
create this more targeted, more focused training program for our managers. So looking at things
like how to create, you know, proper, proper performance measurements, how to, to address
management issues that, you know, come up through the course of business. But to be able to
make them stronger, to give them the right tools to be effective through these training programs,
and that should be driven from, from our Department. DPS does a great job of, of putting
together a kind of generalized training, but we need more focused management training.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, questions? No?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We doing the Jedi mind trick, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My only question is where, where Mr. Hokama is truly sitting?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I have no idea this morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I have couple questions. In regards to the grants that we receive, do we allow
for administrative costs, you know, which includes rental, rental space costs in regards to the two
grants at one...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, for Grant Revenue the grantor whether it be the Federal government, the State
any private donors, will put restrictions and requirements on the funding and what is allowed and
specifically for the Workforce Investment Act and CDBG, they do cover administrative expenses
including such things as rent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we, we did calculate for those, for One Main Plaza?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. How about fringe benefits for those employees, does the grant cover
fringes for those employees?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, that would be part of the administrative costs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The 10 percent? Okay. Any more questions, Members, in regards to the
Grant Revenues for OED. If not, thank you, Teena, for being here this morning and then we'll
see you probably April 21 St when we do the Grants review.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next area we gonna be reviewing is the Department of Management.
Members, on the proposed bill it's on Page 6, Program Budget it's 12-1, the details 10-1, total
budget request is $4,683,000. Joining us this morning, we do have the Managing Director,
Mr. Keith Regan. And then we all received an overview handout of the Department's request, so
I'm gonna have Mr. Regan provide us with that overview in regards to what was handed out this
morning. Mr. Regan?
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Well, good morning, Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. Chair Mateo, good morning it's nice to see you. I sincerely appreciate the
opportunity to be here this morning to discuss the Department of Management's FY 12 Budget
Proposal. Before I get into some of the details and I, I apologize for the lateness of getting this
handout to you, but I just wanted to go over really briefly how the Department of Management
was created and what its purpose serves and what are some of things that we are, are working on
as a Department.
The Department of Management, much like the other departments within the County, is created
through the County's Charter and I won't belabor the specific items that are in the Charter. But
as you can see, one of the primary objectives of this particular Department is to act as a principal
management aide to the Mayor, as well as to supervise the administrative functions of those
agencies, departments, boards and commissions assigned by the Mayor. And that's a pretty
broad task.
Within the Department we have three major programs: we have the Administrative or the
Management Program, we have the Management Information Systems Program, and finally we
have the Geographic Information Systems Program. The Mayor has essentially assigned 16
Departments to the Department of Management to provide oversight, and you can see those
listed on the second page of the handout. And they range from Civil Defense all the way through
to Water Supply. So it's a pretty broad area of responsibility that our Department has, and you
can see from this that we really kind of a global Department, cross-departmental, with
cross-departmental responsibilities and oversight.
The program itself, because we are tasked with assisting in the management of Departments, we
need to be able to reach out to the Departments to find out what's actually happening there, how
are they managing, what are some of the challenges that they're experiencing, and how can we
assist them, as well as to provide guidance. So we do require certain things from the
Departments that help us to be able to understand what some of their challenges are. And these
are a list of some the initiatives that we've taken since we've been in office.
Initially, we, or currently, we require that all Departments provide a bi-weekly report to the
Department of Management, to the Managing Director. This bi-weekly report serves a number
-32-
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We also, our, our task with updating, maintaining, and creating the SOGP's, Standard Operating
Guidelines and Procedures. We do reorganization and consolidation reviews regularly. If
Departments want to make any kind of change, they have to start with us first, before we do
allow them to proceed, and then also we work with our Budget Office with the TEPS program,
which is the Travel, Equipment, and Professional Services program.
Now there are other initiatives that are not listed here but, you know, we...these are just some of
the, the more basic ones, the high-level ones that we wanted to share with you. We have some
Countywide initiatives that we're undertaking as well within the Department of Management
program. We are working on a Vehicle Use Policy and a Fleet Management Program, which we
already came down and spoke to you folks about when the Cost of Government Commission was
here, and we are actively working on that. We have our staff that's been assigned to this and
they're collecting data, and once we complete our analysis, we'll be coming back to the Council,
probably mid-year or so, and asking for some assistance with moving this Vehicle Use Policy
forward and possibly creating a Fleet Management Program here within the County.
We are also in the process of developing a formalized employee overtime policy. That was
another issue that was brought up by the Cost of Government Commission, that we feel is, it's
important to address. There's no one, I guess global employee overtime policy that exists
currently; however, we feel there should be some basic guidance for all Departments coming out
of our, our office, so we are in the process of completing that as well.
We do have the Attrition Policy, which I believe you've all heard about and discussed, and our
office takes an active role in that. We, we assist and we work with the Budget Director and the
Mayor with regards to making sure that Attrition Policy is followed through on.
We have some Employee Morale and Productivity Programs that we put forward as well. Some
of you may have read in the newspaper recently or have looked or saw it in The Maui News, that
we have this Countywide County Pride Program that we've put together where we've asked our
Departments to nominate employees who have done outstanding work within the Department,
that have maybe done something unique, something special that they should be recognized for.
And this is not to take away from DPS's program that they have, but it is to enhance and it's to
let our employees know that we really truly care about them and we want to be able to share with
the community about what it is that they're doing to make this County a better place. We've had
three at this point that we've put forward in the newspaper, and hopefully you've, hopefully
you've all had a chance to look at those ads that we've run.
We have a Health and Wellness Program that we put forward and this is important because it
helps to create more productive employees by encouraging them to be more healthy and to live a
healthier lifestyle. So for those of you that are familiar with this program, we do have a walking
program that we do on our lunch break on Wednesdays, where we invite all County employees
to come on out and walk with us for half an hour. So we're not doing this, you know, on our, on
County time. We're doing this basically on our own time and, you know, because we care, we
-34-
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care about what's going on with our County employees. And we also have a wellness fair that's
coming up in April 7th .
And we also have this Innovation Pay Policy which we're working with the Department of
Public...I'm sorry...Personnel Services to finalize, but essentially what this Innovation Pay
Policy will do is provide employees with an opportunity to be rewarded for coming up with
innovative ideas that save money for the County. This is not something new, it happens
oftentimes in private practice, but it's rare to see something like this in the public sector,
although there are jurisdictions throughout the country that have similar policies. And we feel
that this is a good way to encourage our employees to provide us with some suggestions. You
know, if you can monetize something, you'd be surprised, you know, what you can get back, so
hopefully we can see...hopefully we'll see something come from this.
We do have our "Brown Bag" Lunch Program, which again is another program that we've...that
we do during our lunch, where once a month, we host a brown bag session where employees can
get together with Department of Management, with myself and some of our staff, and have a, it's
an informal setting where they can share some of their concerns, they can ask questions, you
know, it's a very comfortable atmosphere. And we do those programs in the Mayor's lounge, as
well as we do it onsite, so we encourage, you know, we know that's it's difficult let's say for
employees to get out from Lahaina baseyard or from Makawao baseyard or, you know, from
different outlaying areas, and our goal is to be able to bring that program to, to all the areas
including Molokai and Lanai and Hana. So we want to make sure that our employees know that
we're here and we're listening and we're available to them.
We have this Permit Process Improvement Team that we put together in conjunction with some
of the Mayor's Office staff, and this Permit Process Improvement Team essentially is to go over
the processes that exist behind the permitting functions of the County and to find ways to
enhance that to make it faster, to make it more efficient, and to eliminate some of the roadblocks
that exist. We're actually, you know, moving forward with making some very, very positive
changes within the permit process which I'm sure that, as we go forward, the Mayor's Office
will discuss a little bit more.
We do have this Pre-Project Review Program that we've just, we just actually created this
program, which is going to allow individuals from the public to come forward and essentially
bounce ideas off of our staff to be a able to give, for us to be able to give them some high-level
guidance. As an example, let's say that, you know, Councilmember Couch, you wanted to create
a restaurant in a, in a location and you came forward to us and said, hey, you know, we wanna, I
wanna create this restaurant, what's some of my challenges, what do I have to look at? Well, we
would be able to identify some of the things that may, may come up, that maybe you need a
grease trap, maybe it's an office space and you need to have a change in certificate of occupancy.
But these are things that, you know, oftentimes people don't think about, they just go and they do
this work, and then they're stuck with this after-the-fact issue and they're getting fined. And it
becomes very frustrating for people, as well as for our Departmental staff, too, because we know
that they should have done some more due diligence before they came forward. But we need to
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make it...it's much like, how do I put this, the County, Maui County Business Resource Center,
if you can kind of think of it like that, where we have the SCORE program that works with
businesses to really give them advice, to encourage them, to address issues, but this is from the
permitting side. If we can address these issues upfront, it's gonna make for a much less
frustrating experience later on down the road, so that's kind of where we're coming with that
Pre-Project Review Program.
We're in the process of developing and putting together this Technical Workshop Conference,
which will be geared more towards the professionals in the industry, so the engineers, the
architects, the consultants that are actually producing or doing these large developmental
projects. What we've identified through our Permit Process Improvement Team is that one of
the biggest challenges that we face are the, the lack of attention to detail, by some of these
consultants who are using perhaps junior engineers or junior architects to be able to move some
of their plans forward without, you know, really putting a lot of effort into it. So what we wanna
do is make sure that we, we create this Technical Workshop where they can come in, they can
hear from our various different, the different principals or disciplines within the County, and get
some good advice, and be able to hopefully produce better plans, which would then, you know,
make the permitting process that much more efficient. So that's one of the things we're working
on as well.
We have our County, County of Maui Academy Program which we, which I started when I was
Managing Director in Mayor Arakawa's term four, four years ago, which, you know, basically
and a lot of these things are a kind of communication, right? It's communication between the
public and our government, and this, this program helped out a lot by really answering some
questions, what do we do, how do we do it? What does...how is sewage treated, you know, in
the County of Maui? How do we process water? You know, basic things like that. How does
the Police Department function? What are some of their, their main programs that they have
there? But these are questions that came up and that we addressed through this County Academy
Program. And it was basically a six-week process where we allowed them to be able to become
educated. You know, it's basically an Academy Program, as well as the County on your Corner
Program, which I believe Councilmember White participated in over the weekend, which, you
know, is something that we put forward to the Mayor's Office and, you know, it's been very
effective. It allows the Community to be able to interact in a very informal setting. We were
asked questions, you know, and kind of, without even really thinking about it, you know, they
just...if they happen to be shopping somewhere and they wanna ask their Council Member a
question, or they wanna ask the Mayor a question, or they wanna ask our department heads a
question, we're there to answer that for them; to be able to connect with our, with the people here
in this community.
So moving on, some additional responsibilities within our Department include Veteran Affairs,
ADA Compliance, Countywide Security, our Energy Efficiency, Energy Efficiency Programs
and Support, to the various different Departments, Emergency Incident Management, Capital
Improvement Project and Coordination/Support. Manage, we also manage the Countywide IT
through our MIS Program and as well as the GIS through our GIS Program. And a large bulk of
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our time is spent actually dealing with cross-departmental issues and concerns and helping to
resolve those.
A couple of...just quick highlights and then we will delve into the details here very shortly,
Chair. But from a very high level, you can see we've outlined some of the changes in our budget
from FY '12 to FY...I'm sorry, FY '11 to FY '12. Essentially, the changes are, are from the
previously unfunded positions which we have...we had in our Department. The incumbents did
have return rights and did return to those positions, and so we're asking to place the funding in
there, as well as furlough adjustments. If we do remove the furlough, we needed to add that back
in there, and then also we're asking for equipment for the Department as well, I'm sorry, for the
program as well.
On the next page, and I know that we'll talk more details, and we do have our staff here from the
various other programs, but the MIS program highlights, you can see that a majority of the
increase came from, well, it came from equipment primarily, but the furlough adjustments we,
we had to increase that as well as step and reallocation adjustments by 61,000, operations by
13,000, and equipment by 259,000. And I'm sure that our MIS Administrator will talk more
about the equipment increases.
And for our GIS Program, it's essentially a flat budget. We do have some furlough adjustments
of 14,000, but we have a reduction in equipment by about 14,000 so, and our operations is flat.
So with that, Chair, that's a very brief overview, I'm sorry if I took longer than, than expected,
but I felt that it was important that I share some of the things that we're working on within the
Department. Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Regan, for that quick overview. I appreciate it. It seems
you're a busy department. Gonna start off with Member Carroll, if you have any questions for
Mr. Regan on their, on their overview?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not, not really a question but a comment. I'm very excited about the
Management initiatives, and I wanna say that I think that their idea of management by walking
around, which we know is popular, is a very good idea. Being on-site makes a difference. I'm
also very happy to hear about capacity building, because I've been concerned for a long time
about training. I think we do tremendous technical training but we need to do a lot more
management training, and I see that's where you're going. And in regards to your incentives and
your innovation pay, I recently read something about, from some personnel management
company, and they had done a study and asked people what was the best kind of incentive or
reward they would like? And to a person they said money, so I think you're on it.
MR. REGAN: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for the overview and I am, I too
are very, is very, I'm very excited about your initiatives and the permit process improvement of
course is...was a big thing, everybody's concerns in the community. But getting out there and
hearing the voices, 'cause everyday there's ideas or concerns that I never dreamt would even be
happening out there in the community. And it's just because it's not specific to my, you know,
my own life, but these people, they're going through a lot of planning and all this stuff, so I'm
really, really happy that we're moving forward in that direction. So I'm looking forward to
seeing the outcome and the, you know, hopefully improvements there. So thank you for that,
just a comment. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, Chairman, what, what, I know this Department of Management,
for my example, since it's, it's something throughout the budget document. But it's interesting
that the adjustments to reduce furlough, which is 12 days more, I guess we're replacing the
12 days, so if they get 12 days more and we gonna pay for that, if you look at Performance
Measure, it's still pretty much close to what we had with 12 days less. So for someone like me
who sits in this chair, I'm wondering what are we paying extra for when the measurements seem
to be still the same with the 12-day furloughs? So it's a genetic question to
Administration...well, generic, generic...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe it is genetic.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I won't say who I'm looking at. But it's more generic, Chairman. And so,
you know, my tendency is to, I going be honest, I'm going to look at reducing, first. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Generic or genetic? Okay. No, I also will
complement the Managing Director's Office for their initiatives, and the only question I had is
this return rights. You know, I, I've always been kind of confused on this return rights. You
know, I understand certain departments have 'em, others do not. What, what makes your
Department these return rights, you know, because I understand Parks, understand Police, you
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know, these, these various. But Management, the Department of, you know, your office,
Mr. Director -MR. REGAN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --these people were their, were their return rights specifically to
your office or were they in other departments and brought to your office? That's my question.
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you very much, Member Victorino, a very good question.
The Department of Management, unlike, let's say, the Mayor's Office, the Mayor's Office is
primarily all appointed staff. The Department of Management has a civil service staff within the
Administrative program, and so with the exception of myself, my First Assistant and my
Executive Secretary, we're the only appointed staff within the Department. The, the, the return
right positions that you referred to, these were positions where incumbents, you know, were,
were working there and then took a or took an appointed position within the Administration at
some point in time. And so the Mayor does have the ability to provide return rights to those
employees, to return essentially to their original civil service position or, or, or positions in this,
in this case. So what has happened here is that these two individuals, they took appointed
positions. In fact, they took appointed positions in the Arakawa I Administration and then
carried over into the, into Mayor Tavares' Administration. And so...and every, I believe every
four years, they're required to renew their return rights, so in other words, they have to go back,
it only can last up to four years and they have to request from the, the Mayor at the time, for an
extension or to be returned back, you know, to their civil service position. So my understanding
is that because these two particular positions had been away for such a long period of time, that
the funding was eliminated, which is understandable, but it was also eliminated with the
understanding that, you know, if they do return, that there would be some consideration for, for
funding those positions. So in this situation, Member Victorino, these, these two particular
employees left, they were civil service, they took appointed positions, and they did have a right
to return to the civil service positions. Yeah. And they're restored to where they would have
been had they not left, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I thank you for that explanation. I think -MR. REGAN: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the public appreciates that, because sometimes they get very
confused. They ask me, what is this return rights mean? How does that, how does someone
qualify? And then someone can stay there for such a long period of time away and still get back
their job that they originally left, with the pay they would have had, and they're like, whoa, you
know, not many businesses do that kind of stuff.
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MR. REGAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that was, that was the question and I thank you for that
explanation. At least now the public has a better understanding. So again yours, your First
Assistant and the Secretary to the Managing Director, those three positions are the only
appointed positions. The rest of the seven are civil service positions?
MR. REGAN: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair. Thank you
. . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. It sounds like if the, if the funding for those two
positions was eliminated over that timeframe, that those two jobs were not filled during that, that
stretch of time, is that correct?
MR. REGAN: Yes, sir. That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so I guess that brings up the question of how important is it that
those two positions be filled?
MR. REGAN: That's a great question. And if I may, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. We, we immediately found very specific tasks for these individuals to handle for
the Department. Specifically, they're handling the, the Vehicle Use and Fleet Management
Development program which is, which takes a lot of time. I mean we have 16 Departments and
almost every single Department has some sort of vehicle, you know, in it. There's a lot of
research that needs to be done. There's a lot of work that this employee is doing. In addition,
we have assigned very specific tasks to each of these employees. The other employee is
handling and working on our, our overtime program as well, so these are just some basic things
that they're working on. But, you know, are they, are they being utilized? I will say yes, they
are definitely being utilized. With 16 Departments and unbelievable amount of, of
responsibility, and I'm not saying that I'm not prepared to take on that, I do need, I do need some
assistance and these Executive Assistants do help to provide that, and as tasks come in, they get
assigned various different tasks. We have tasks sheets that they've been assigned.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you Mr. Chairman. Mr. Regan, your Countywide initiatives,
there is one in particular that I'm really anxious to receive whatever findings is been, being
processed now, and that's your Permit Process Improvement Team, to help this County address
this long-standing dysfunctional process. So is there anything else you can share with us in
terms of when a finding will be completed or how the implementation of change is going to be
implemented by the respected department?
MR. REGAN: Yeah, I would be happy to share some high-level stuff with you if that's okay, Chair
Mateo. What we've done at this point is we are, we are specifically looking at policy decisions
that are made within the Departments to see how we can adjust some of those policies. That's an
immediate thing that we can do to help try to improve the permit process, and in fact we have
asked all Departments to go back and list policy decisions that are being made so that we can see
what those are. There may be policies that were created 20 years ago and may not be germane or
may not be, you know, applicable to, to our current, you know, state, so we've asked them to do
that. We have also addressed very specific items within the process in terms of the way...like
let's say triage is one of those particular areas where we wanna make sure that the Departments
that are, are looking at these permits, it's not on a first-come, first-serve basis, that it's essentially
if you've got something simple, minor improvements, that those improvements are taken up
quickly so that they can get moved out.
In addition, we met with the City and County of Honolulu, because City and County of Honolulu
has a very mature permitting system that they've gone through, through numerous improvement
processes. They have this one-stop shop concept which you've heard, I think Mayor Arakawa
has talked about in the past, and we wanted to understand how are they able to do that? What are
some of the things that they're doing that's making their permit process that much more efficient
than let's say ours? Why does it take them, you know, two months to process a permit, but it
takes us twelve? And so we, rather than reinvent the wheel, we went there, we spoke with them,
and we came back with some really great ideas, specifically using third-party review, and how to
implement something like that. So in other words, if we...what City and County does is they
have qualified, certified consultants who, you know, if their plans come through and they're part
of this third-party review, it expedites it through the process. Essentially, it's been certified, you
know, by the department there to be able to move through without as much scrutiny as other
plans may be, you know, if it's not done by a third-party review. So we're looking at
implementing that as one possibility to help expedite, but there would have to be a certification
process, a qualification process. And in fact, we're thinking about tying that in with our
Technical Workshop that we have, so that in order for you to, to be able to move your stuff
through the process that much quicker, you'll have to go through this Technical Workshop
Review program in order to make sure that you're qualified and that you understand what some
of our needs are within the County.
So those are just some of the things we're working on. Ultimately, what we wanna do is be able
to completely map out the process. That's another thing too, is that each department kind of has
an idea of how the permit flows, you know, but, but there's not one master flow chart of the
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process and unfortunately, it's...there's so many variables that exist. But we wanna have a, a
very clear picture of the process so that we can visually start to identify where we can change,
you know, some of the operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is there a window? A timetable?
MR. REGAN: I think this is, to be quite honest this is an ongoing thing. This is not something that
once we're done in six months that, that the, the, the Permit Process Improvement Team goes
away. I see this as a continuing quality improvement program. You know, this is something that
we want to maintain but we'd like to see some very specific changes within the next two months,
especially when it comes to policy changes. We've tasked them, we meet twice a month by the
way so every second and fourth . . . (someone sneezes). . . bless you, Thursday of the month we
meet and we have very specific tasks items that we've put forward to the departments and the
policy one is, is the one that's, I don't want to say the most cumbersome, but it takes the most
time for them to be able to put together, you know, so that we can review it. But that, I can see
some major changes happening within the departments over the next one or two months with
regards to policy changes that we can make.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MR. REGAN: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
MR. REGAN: Thanks, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah. Just a few comments regarding your presentation on, on
your Department. You know, happy to hear that you're gonna have upper management training.
This is I think one area that has been missing since I've been here, that's now being addressed.
And, and then the other thing is that as far as your, you know, oversight initiatives, you know, it
kind of brought me back to when I was in private business, so I think you guys heading in the
right direction, in regards to the programs you have set for the Department. So I applaud you in
regards to, in regards to that and, you know, basically we not going see the fruits, you know, this
upcoming Budget year, but maybe the following year there should be some improvements in
regards to the programs that you have already, you know, noted and, and, and in place, you
know, and going, yeah. So with that, Members, I'm gonna go with the...on Page 10-1 we'll take
the Management Program, Salaries and Wages. Ms. Baisa, you have any questions? This is the
A Account.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Strictly on 10-3?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No comment other than that, those returning employees are pretty hefty
expenses but, you know, we have to do it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not as this at time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if memory serves me right, and I guess maybe it was during
Mayor Arakawa's first term. There was still this two EA positions and they were recognized so
they were, they agreed to appointment positions. So as I recall, that was a justification for the
First Assistant, who was then Mr. Taira, then succeeded by I guess Mr. Taylor, now we have
Mr. Ching. So since we have the two now, EAs back from those appointed positions, the
question should be from this Committee, do we still need the First Assistant? And that is what
my question to, is to the Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. REGAN: Thank you. If I may, our, our Department we have 10 people working in our
Department, or in our program, our Management program. We have 16 departments that we're
responsible for, 2,500 employees, almost every, in fact every department with the exception of
the Department of Management has a Deputy Director, which the Director can fall back upon to
assist and to use them, to execute the Director's programs and, and to assist and to step in when
the Director is not available. I know that and I'm going back in time, and I apologize, but when
my predecessor when, when Managing Director Jack Kulp stepped into office, and I don't wanna
speak for him but I only know what I, what I've experienced okay, through my, my experiences
here in the County. I think he identified that as a, as a concern, not having backup for himself
and the, the span of control that exists is so great that it's difficult for one manager, for one
individual to be able to, to, to do that, I mean to be able to effectively manage that, that large
group of individuals, in addition to his or her regular responsibilities. Now I'm not saying that I
agree or disagree with that. That's just the reality of the, of the situation and that's why he, I
believe asked or created this First Assistant, you know, position is essentially as a, I don't wanna
call it fall back but it's a quasi kind of Deputy position, it's not, it's not even called Deputy, it's
called First Assistant, but it just kind of carried forward from there. You know, there are, there
are certain I guess tasks and duties that, that a Director has to carry out that may not be
appropriate for I guess other staff within the Department to handle, specifically when it comes to
disciplinary actions. I don't think that it would be appropriate, if in fact let's say for whatever
reason the Managing Director was unavailable, and there was a requirement or there needed to
be some sort of disciplinary action taken against an employee within the Department or some
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action taken within the County, let's just say as an example, for, you know, one of the Civil
Service employees within the Department to take on those responsibilities, I don't know that it's
fair to ask them to do that. I mean I...that's...I'm just speaking, you know, from my experiences
in my different, different roles.
So to get back to your original question, is it necessary? To be honest with you I, I believe it is.
I wish that it was truly a Deputy position versus just being called First Assistant, I use it as a
Deputy position, I see it as a Deputy position. We have a number of cross-departmental issues
that have to be dealt with as well and, you know, sometimes that might be a challenge for, for a
Civil Service position to have, to be able to take let's say a, a very specific leadership or
management decision as well, so you kind of need that higher level management position within
the Department. So I don't know, you know, Member Hokama, if I've provided you with the
justification or the reasoning as to, to why we feel that it's necessary to have that position, but
considering the, the span of control, the amount of responsibility that's being placed on the
shoulders of the MD, I think it's something that is, that should have been considered perhaps in
previous Charter, you know, Amendments to insert a Deputy position. I know that one of the
challenges that came up was with regards to the Deputy position, the line of succession, right,
within the Charter. The Charter speaks to the MD and then the, the Finance Director, so you
know, that was always a question, right. You know, what would happen if there was a Deputy
position created? And so I think that may have been one of the reasons why they created the
term First Assistant versus Deputy Director. Thanks, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that's not what the Charter fathers had in mind, Chairman, I can tell
you that. And, and yet we're told in the review of the Office of the Mayor that a Executive
Assistant II was up...elevated to Chief of Staff, and the Department of Management has a
Executive Assistant II, so while I can understand some of the Managing Director's responses to
my earlier question, structurally it doesn't pass my litmus test, structurally. So if this is a way to
add non-Civil Service positions to take out certain other requirements, then let's just call it what
it is and I'll make my decisions on whether I'm gonna fund or cut accordingly. But it doesn't
make sense on what is in the details for me as far as how I understand this County operates
through my years of experience, Chairman. Looks a hell of a lot fat to me. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think the questions have been raised and something we've gotta
look...look, look over, yeah, so I have none at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In the, on the salary list you have a Energy
Program Specialist and yet in the later pages there's, the budget has, the budget for the Energy
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Program has been eliminated in earlier years. Is there, has that budget been moved somewhere
else or is it non-existent?
MR. REGAN: Chair, if I may?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: Yeah, my understanding is that the program was consolidated into the, that particular
program was consolidated into the Management Program. It is a Civil Service position within
the Department and it does provide the continuity for a lot of the energy programs that we have
going forward. And so I, I think they just felt that, and I can't speak for prior Councils nor for
prior management, but my understanding is that there was a consolidation that occurred and that
position was essentially moved into the Management Program.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. And how does that person work and how do their duties
compare to the Energy Coordinator in OED?
MR. REGAN: I can't speak specifically to that, but I can share with you that there's a lot of
collaboration that's occurring between the two individuals. Again, we have a large, it's a, we
have a large County and there's basically two individuals, one with some permanence, right, one
with, that's has continuity that can carry these initiatives forward from
administrative...Administration to Administration. And you have another one who is essentially
trying to I guess push forward the objectives of the Mayor, and so the two kind of work together
to be able to properly effectuate some of the Mayor's...or the County's objectives as it come, as
it speaks to energy improvements and efficiencies.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Regan, in your, your list of personnel
positions you've got two positions specifically for CIP, one apparently is an overall and the other
just deals with Countywide. This is, because you have oversight in some of the additional
departments, we've heard from Water who indicated that they, too, will have their own CIP
individual, and we heard from the Mayor earlier where through Public Works there's gonna be a
creation of a working group that will address CIP. How redundant is this or is this all part of
what the Mayor addressed as part of the, the planning process in taking the County farther with
our CIP abilities?
MR. REGAN: That's a great question. Thank you, Chair. The, these two positions that you're talking
about the Countywide CIP Coordinator and the CIP Coordinator, or also known as a Project
Manager. You know, they provide some expertise within the Department of Management to be
able to delve into the details of the CIP projects, for the various different Departments within the
County that have CIP projects. So they're not really, with the exception of the Project Manager,
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I know that this Project Manager did handle specific CIP projects within the County, but now
we're gonna be tasking that CIP Coordinator with some of our permit process improvement
programs so, you know, some of the duties of that individual are gonna change very quickly. In
fact, we're just finalizing that right now, so we feel that this individual's experience and
expertise will, will hugely benefit the public in terms of being able to be a part of that program.
And the CIP Coordinator or the Countywide CIP Coordinator which is Wendy Taomoto, who
has been here, you know, in the past has been extremely beneficial to the Department, you know,
she has, you know, really helped us bring the CIP program in line and helped save, you know,
hundreds of thousands of dollars, if not millions of dollars for the County, by some of the
initiatives that she's been able to push forward, and, you know, because she has tremendous
experience in CIP she's been a resource. So I think the program that the Mayor's creating or
wants to create is more of a, kind of like a team that would be responsible for individual CIP
projects, right. Whereas what we have here with the...this Countywide CIP, CIP Coordinator,
sorry its a mouthful, is more to provide general oversight, right. From a management
perspective, are they doing if properly, you know, are they, you know, saving money or are they,
you know, kind of frivolously or, you know, not really doing a good analysis of the ways that
they're, they're moving these CIP projects forward. So we need that experience and that
expertise in our Department to be able to, to be able to provide some guidance to the directors,
and keep, make sure that they're on track.
We all know that, you know, as the CIP projects start to fall or get on the wrong track, how
expensive it can be. We've all, I know we've all been through requests for additional monies for
CIP projects and I think that if we have good management and oversight which I, I know we
been having through Wendy, we're only going to get better. And the Mayor's program only
enhances our ability to be more efficient and effective when it comes to our CIP program.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that comment in regards to Wendy's work. I think
it was this Council that really created the position for the Administration. I have a fast question.
In regards to the salaries that is being afforded all of, you know, except for the Civil Service
employees and those return rights employees, how was that determined?
MR. REGAN: You know to be honest with you, Chair, I mean that's something that was determined by,
through previous budgets, so I don't think we made a...it was just a carry forward from the
previous Fiscal Year '11 Budget which was approved by the Council. So, you know, those are
the numbers that we, we put in. Now in terms of the Managing Director's salary, that is set by
the Salary Commission.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, yeah that, that I understand.
MR. REGAN: So, you know, even the Secretary to the Managing Director that, that wage there is
essentially carried forward so.
-46-
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, 'cause, you know, one thing I, you know, that bothers me is that, you
know, you, you do have a four-year term in, in regards to operating the County, and I would kind
of look at, you know, as we, as you guys progress during the different years then, you know,
based on performance measures, you know, those salaries can be adjusted. But to come in, well,
this is my own personal opinion yeah, to come in at the certain level, you know, right off the bat
based on previous year without any I guess performance in regards to the position, to me is
something that need to be addressed. Maybe for the Budget Director, if you can provide us
information regarding several positions, MD-0027, MD-0015, MD-0059, and MD-03...0034, if
you can provide us the job descriptions for those following positions. Member Carroll, do you
have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions in regards to the A Account?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. I caught MD-00 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
MR. BAZ: --0055 [sic], 59, 34 and what were the other positions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MM... oh, MD-0027, rather than 55 it's MD-0015.
MR. BAZ: Oh, 15, excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to the B Account, Members, looking at 10-4.
Ms. Baisa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch? Member Hokama? Basically flat.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you view the Veterans Affair as a separate program from the B
account for MD's office?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think it is. Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Hokama, what was the question again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Veterans...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Veterans Affairs component, is that part of B Account for Admin or, or
MD's office?
MR. KANESHINA: That, that's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that something you want, you...you willing to take up now, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Okay. Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you just tell us this morning what is the plan for the funding requested
for the Veteran Affairs component of your Department please?
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair, if I may very quickly. You now the Veterans Affairs program that we
have provides funding for, specifically for veterans issues that one of our Executive Assistants is
tasked with. They...I can get a more specific breakout of exactly, you know, what the monies
are utilized for, and I'd be happy to have that, you know, submitted to the, to this body so that
you have a better understanding of the specifics. I don't have those in front of me unfortunately,
but -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: --I'll be more than happy to provide that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Director. And again I'm just, you know, for Lanai, you
know Public Works Department is tasked in providing some maintenance of the Veterans
Cemetery and they do a great job, you know.
MR. REGAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Lanai we're a very small operation so our County personnel does a great
job, but we also have community members who are veterans that volunteer time and I'm hoping
if this would be the right account, Mr. Director, that I will hope we would at least allow the
veterans who give free service to be able to get some reimbursement of, of fuel and oil when
they use their own equipment for weed-whacking, mowing and other, other things to just give
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our community service for veterans that this would be...or I would like to know if this is the area
that I could direct them for consideration?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: --Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama, in Public Works, on Page 17-13 starts the Lanai Veterans
Cemetery Program Budget and that would be -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the area?
MR. BAZ: --the area that, that would be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this would be totally something outside of that maintenance area
then, not the funding request?
MR. BAZ: Yes, the, the cemetery maintenance is under Public Works.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Mr. Director, when, when you're able to share that information,
that would be appreciated. And then quickly, just so that we, we, we understand, what is County
Facilities Security PRJ, please?
MR. REGAN: That's a great question. We...the Department of Management is tasked with providing
Countywide security for all departments, with the exception of the Police Department. So you'll
see that we have cameras throughout various different facilities. We have access points where
you can, we can prevent access. We have the, the various different badges that you see, that the
employees have, which have, you know, the little chips in them that allow them to have access.
Those are just some of the basic things that we do. We do also provide some monitoring of some
of the systems and we also utilize an outside vendor to provide some of those services as well, so
that's where those monies are expended.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: And these things aren't cheap, you know, unfortunately, you know a lot of this
technology is expensive, in fact we, we were just talking about some of the recording equipment
to record the video, and these boxes cost anywhere from eight to ten thousand dollars apiece, and
they just record video, you know, so they're, they're basically just DVRs. But...so we need to
make sure, you know, for Homeland Security purposes that the monies are there, so that if we
need to expand some of those services. Interesting thing if I may, Chair, really quick -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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MR. REGAN: --is, you know, during this last tsunami event, we were scrambling because we had no
ability to see our shorelines, right. We didn't have access to any cameras, perhaps that could
have been mounted on a State facility or a County facility, that would give us some visual of
what was happening. And so this is something where, you know, we've been talking about
wanting to expand our program, you know, to be able to, to provide those visuals for Civil
Defense and EOC.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Great idea, great idea, Mr. Director. So PRJ has no, no, no meaning that,
that PRJ...I'm just curious what that's, if that stood for something?
MR. REGAN: I, you know what, honestly I have no idea what, what the acronym is. I'd be happy to
find out for you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That wouldn't be your vendor right?
MR. REGAN: No, no. It shouldn't be. No, no, no, no.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: I'll find out for you and, and I'll report back to this body.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Director. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Regan, you know, you bring up one interesting point about
locating the visual cameras at strategic locations. Is there a possibility of maybe checking into
Homeland Security for some monies, you know, should they have, in regards to security cameras
throughout Maui County?
MR. REGAN: That's a great question, and there are some monies available. I know that it's with, you
know, the budget crisis that is happening now on the Federal level that it's hard for us to able to
tap into some of those funds that exist, but we, we would explore every possible option, you
know, before expending County dollars. There are grant programs that we can apply to and, you
know, we definitely looking at that as well so. But nonetheless though we still need to be able to
move forward with some of these projects quickly and the grant funding process, you know, it
can take years to be able to get those, those monies. And we just...having gone through this
Tsunami event, there's a clear need, you know, for us to expand some of our programs, and if
can get reimbursement for some of these projects later, then we would definitely do so. But we
definitely wanna explore all the options that are out there for us. Thank you. I appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, when I was with the phone company, we did work with I
think was KHNL, in regards to setting up cameras throughout the State actually, so that they can
provide, you know, their viewers when, when they give the weather report, so something to look
at. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and, and I also would share the same concerns that I
would like something like this to be worked on, Mr. Director. I think not only because of
emergencies but there other issues that are being brought up constantly and the world of
technology is improving quite rapidly. They're not that expensive, you know, a lot systems now,
Mr. Chair, are relatively inexpensive and, you know, and it's computerized, can go right to your
computer, you don't have to have special monitors and, et cetera. So I mean, I think this is long
overdue and I think something like this can be done and I'd rather... if you can find funds to help
us, right on. If not, you know, and even maybe some private/public partnerships like what you
see with many of the broadcasting systems in Oahu that's a public...a public/private partnership
in utilization. So maybe we can have Akaku and some of these other guys, you know, work with
them and see if we can fill some of these needs but I can, I can concur with that. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. On Page 10-4 under 6129 Other Services and 6138,
I would imagine it's Repairs and Maintenance, Services and Contracts. My question is, you
know, with the way the Budget is presented, we're shown the 2011 Budget rather than an
estimate or a forecast of what the expenses are, both of those represent significant increases from
FY 2010. Do you have any sense of how much has been of that 40,000 spent for other services
and 130,000 spent for R&M, has actually being utilized this fiscal year?
MR. REGAN: Chair, if I may?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: I don't have specifics at this point but I can tell you that these, these funding sources that
we're asking for, especially when it comes to Professional Services and Other Services, will be
utilized for our training program that we're putting forward. It's not cheap to, you know, do
these, I'm sure you, you recognize that, you know, being from the private sector, that to put
really effective training programs together, you know, you're gonna have to spend money
possibly to bring in trainers, so that's where we're gonna be using some of those funds for. In
terms of the R&M Services Contracts, you know, my understanding is that this money, these
monies are for maintaining the equipment that's being utilize by the Department of Management,
specifically like the copy machines, the fax machines, you know, those hard items that are up
there, and the large copiers, I mean we don't have just, you know, like the small copiers but there
are large copiers that we're responsible for as well. So I, I don't know if I've answered your
question.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Does this include the GIS and MIS operations or is this just in your
office?
MR. REGAN: No, this is just in our office. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So are those...I believe most of the copiers...
MR. REGAN: Oh, and, and, and also it also helps to fund some of our security system as well, for the
service contracts that we have with that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so it's not really repairs and maintenance. I guess it would be
maintenance and services contract.
MR. REGAN: Well, repair, maintenance services and contracts, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Okay, so you don't know how much has...of these amounts
have been spent this year?
MR. REGAN: I'm not sure at this point. I do...I can share though that...and just really quickly. The
two incumbent or, or two positions that had return rights to our, our office, I don't know if you
recall, but we had, had put forward a request to have a Budget Amendment heard and we
understand, you know, that it wasn't, it wasn't moved forward. And that's okay, but primarily
what we're doing at this point now is using, because it is a program budget, the savings that we
have there. There are some things we just didn't, we just didn't do this year, that we had to put
off so that we could fund some of those positions with those monies, so I'm not sure exactly how
much of the 130,000, you know, is, is left at this point. I can tell you though that 110,000 of that
on an annual basis is used specifically for security.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. I mean it's a big jump from 65,000 two years ago and -MR. REGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --under Other Services was $500 compared to 40,000.
MR. REGAN: And primarily it's, it's because we've expanded the security program here within the
County. All of our facilities are, are...how do I put it, they...they're on one system now, so that,
you know, we can control all facilities from one, one point, one access point so we can give, you
know, we can give you access without having to go down to the Service Center, let's say, to
upgrade their systems. We're all kind of on one platform now at this point in time. So what
you...what I think you're seeing here is the, the growth in our security program. We have
cameras that we didn't have two years ago. We have systems that we didn't have two years ago.
We've expanded a lot of these systems to outlying areas and that cost money for the
infrastructure and then also for the additional maintenance as well. I hope that...does that
answer your...I don't have specific items but I can share with you that I...what I do know of the
program is that it has grown over the years and that's what you're seeing I think there, in that
particular line item.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So actually it's separate from what was discussed much earlier
then? Mr. Regan?
MR. REGAN: I'm sorry, excuse me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Actually, the cameras are totally separate from what we discussed much
earlier, PRJ?
MR. REGAN: Well, I think what you're seeing there, that would help to address some of that but I
don't think that's gonna be enough for some of the expansion that we're planning on trying to
do. As I mentioned, we have these...this DVR equipment, it's basically recording large, I don't
want to call them...they're digital recorders, okay, basically, and they record all of the, the film,
all the video that we have out there. We need to I think replace eight of those, eight of those are
coming to the end of their life cycle at this point in time, and those cost anywhere from eight to
ten thousand dollars apiece. And if those fail, then we lose the ability to be able to record,
oftentimes critical video, you know, if, if it needs to, if we need to go back and review it. Once
it's lost, it's lost, you know, so some of those monies will be utilized from the PRJ line item as
well as, you know, some of the monies from the 904011 file.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Budget Director, kind of curious, you know, for Fiscal Year 2011
in regards to some of this sub-object codes, do you guys make a comparison to look at where we
are in regards to spending before the 2012 request is made?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, when I first took over as Budget Director, that was one of the first requests I had
made to our Finance Department to present to me and also the First Assistant to the Managing
Director. He and I went through the Year-to-Date Expenditures, pretty detailed and looking at
those different things. Of course, just starting in, in time to get a good grasp of the operations of
the County, looking at current expenditures and what we're projecting for '12 and the, the size of
what we're looking at. We were not able to get through a lot of the, the different departments as
far as actual expenditures and things for the current fiscal year. What we were looking at was
the FY '10 actuals, which were available to us, and the projected idea of what we're planning on
budgeting for '12 may not necessarily... for some of the, the Sub-Object Codes and some of the
line items, they're pretty standard. I mean you're gonna see a little bit of fluctuation here or
there for, you know, electricity and telephone, that kind of stuff. For a lot of the areas where you
see Professional Services or Miscellaneous, Other Costs, those items are really subject to the
directors and the division chiefs. If they have specific projects that they're working on,
especially when it comes to items like the Managing Director expressed the idea of getting
training in here or other Professional Services that may be needed. Those are the kind of items
that are really hard to determine just from past expenditures, what we're gonna be expending in
the future. And so we project a budget based on what is expressed to us from the departments
with scrutiny on the total Program Budget.
Again, this being a Program Budget, we look at the total cost of operating that, that division or
that program and see, you know, is that sufficient. We do and like I mentioned before we will be
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scrutinizing more detail on the sub-object line item with the departments. But what has been
budgeted in the past as far as what actuals are, if you go through these Budget Details you'll see
an inconsistency for a lot of items including your own Council budget, you know. There's one
line for Miscellaneous, Other Costs and whereas the actual expenditures are broken down to
what those expenditures went to.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. I was just handed a note that on one of the Item 6129, actually
the actuals for Fiscal Year 2010, although it shows $5,985, but basically...oh yeah, it was close
to $6,000 that we had spent and, you know, I don't know what they did between '10 and '11 to
increase that to $40,000, so something that maybe should be looked at and provide us with some
comments in some of those areas. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on the B Account? Member
Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not so much a question but just going back to...Director Regan,
you mentioned the visuals of the shoreline, we didn't really have much. I wanted to say, you
know, Mr. Victorino mentioned private/public partnerships and I know for one the Marriott has a
wonderful camera system, I mean you can see all the way down to Mala Wharf from Kaanapali
Beach and all up and down the coastline. So that could be an option for us to maybe, you know,
work in conjunction with the different properties along the coastline. They all have cameras.
MR. REGAN: You know, I appreciate that, and that's, that's a very good point and we will explore, you
know, all of our options. One of the things that's I think really important though is that if we do
develop out these partnerships is to provide us with, I don't wanna call it uninterruptable, but
basically, you know, prioritize access to those cameras when, when a partnership is created like
that. 'Cause oftentimes they may be like a web camera that people can kind of like tap into and
if everybody's tapping into that web camera it may be difficult for us to access it, to be able to
see it. So, you know, we, we will definitely explore all the, the public/private partnerships that
we can. I think on the upside though, too, we have to make sure that in critical areas, like let's
say, near our, our harbors as an example, that we, we may have to just have our own systems
there so that no one can tap into those systems. We can control the direction of the camera, we
can, you know, zoom in on certain items in those locations. They have these point to zoom type
cameras that we can utilize, that we can, that can be very, very useful to Civil Defense, you
know, in a situation that maybe we might not be able to get the same kind of, you know, access
to, to private cameras. But I don't know I mean we, we will definitely explore it, so I really
appreciate that comment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You're welcome, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just one quick one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I apologize to Mr. Baz if he mentioned it earlier. Where, where is the
component for energy? It's gonna be under Mr. Regan or Office of the Mayor?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Hokama, as was mentioned by the Managing Director, the, the Energy, excuse me I
forget this title -MR. REGAN: Program Specialist.
MR. BAZ: --Energy Program Specialist in the Department of Management is not a separate program, it
is a specific employee that has his tasks in, in...as the Managing Director described. Within the
Office of Economic Development there is an Economic Development Specialist who is Doug
McLeod, who you guys have met, that is looking at energy, not just from the County's
perspective but from the community perspective as well and how that integrates. I think he
presented to the Committee, your Economic Development Committee previously. His salary
is...as an appointed position, his salary is under the Economic Development office, as well as
there are some grants and disbursements for energy programs under there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And, and, and my, my, my, my concern or my question is who's the
lead, is it Mr. Regan, is the lead Department? Is the Office of Mayor through OED the lead
agent? I, I, I just trying to get one sense of who's gonna be the lead for our efforts in this
specific area please?
MR. REGAN: Yeah if I, if I may, I'd be happy to answer that. I think that was a concern or an issue in
perhaps, you know, in previous years, but I know that Kal, or I'm sorry I don't mean to refer to
the employee, but Kal Kobayashi who is the employee there, you know, he has years and years
of experience, I mean here in this community when it deals with energy. So I know in looking at
the, the way that the two are interacting that Doug, although he does have, you know, he also has
a lot of experience, has been looking to Kal for direction, you know, and so I, I kind of see it as,
you know, they're working as a team, but I see Kal kind of helping to guide Doug along, you
know, because there's certain things that perhaps the Mayor may have an idea or, you know,
may want to implement certain energy and efficiency programs that Kal's already been through.
I apologize for referring to him by first name, but...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we all know who you talking about, Mr. Director.
MR. REGAN: You know, and so I think that it's, I see Doug leaning on, on Kal for input and for
direction, so if anyone was taking a lead in that particular area I'd like to say that, you know, we
have a tremendous amount of influence in the direction. In other words, the Department of
Management does and I kind of like it that way, because there may be things that, you know, we
have already gone down and we've already tried.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh, uh-huh.
MR. REGAN: And so why go down that path again, you know, if we've -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Right.
MR. REGAN: --already got that prior experience.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And it's more for the Committee's understanding, Mr. Director, more. I
would assume that with the IRP, the Integrated Resource Planning process, Mr. Kobayashi is the
one that we all know has countless years of experience and he's, he's proven himself to be a
great advocate for the County. And yet though on Molokai and Lanai, you know, Mr. Mateo and
I are dealing with potential mega projects of alternative energy so, you know, for us to know
who is the lead Administration's representative, whether it's Mr. McLeod or if it's you yourself,
Mr. Director, or Mr. Kobayashi. It's easier to us to focus and for us then to consider whether or
not if we want to give additional financial resources support. Which area will we then be
looking at for this type of consideration? And right now I don't know whether to look at Office
of Mayor or Department of Management on, on where I would look at for certain type of
consideration, so if you can help us be able to make a clear distinction of which side would be
preferred should we give some additional resource support. Which department or which agency
would be the one to better handle this?
MR. REGAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I'm not sure whether it's Mayor's Office or Director Regan's
Department, Mr. Chairman, at this time.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. And, and...thank you. Chair, if I may just -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: --really briefly. With that particular issue that you just raised with regards to those new
initiatives that they're trying to put on, on both of your districts. I will share with you that I was
very proud of the collaboration between both Doug and Kal, and, and Mr. Kobayashi, to, to
really put forward...I don't know, I don't know if you had a chance to read the, I guess the
testimony that was provided by, by the County.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It was, well, it was a well written, well thought out position paper for the
Administration.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. And, and I, I have to give credit to both of those individuals because it wasn't one
or the other that really took the lead on it, it was kind of them two working in collaboration. I
like to see that because it just, it's much more powerful for us. In terms of where the money

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

should be located, I know that it was put forward in OED's budget because it's a community
initiative. I have, you know, because we do have oversight over the Mayor's Office we, we can,
you know, if let's say as an example there becomes a point in time where we're in disagreement
perhaps with the direction that Mr. McLeod may be going or OED may be going, we have some
ability to influence that, that direction as well. So I think it's okay that it is where it is now in the
Mayor's Office, but really I think that's gonna be a decision that would be up to you as Council
Members. We're, we're, we're not...me personally -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again -MR. REGAN: --I don't have a preference.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you see we're not...it just makes it simple if we understand
Administration's philosophy -MR. REGAN: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --because Mr. Mateo's question regarding the solar panel initiative for all
County -MR. REGAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --facilities, I can understand why that would be under you and your
Department as Department of Management, but it's under Office of Mayor.
MR. REGAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and so structurally I'm getting mixed signals if you can appreciate our
position.
MR. REGAN: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And so if you would at least consider and thinking about it and if you folks
have some adjustments to make, share it and we can make the appropriate adjustments on our
side too. But it's something that I hope we can think out thoroughly first and once we make the
appropriations it will be a smoother transition to get it released and implemented in a program
format.
MR. REGAN: We will be very open minded to that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions? Okay, next area is Equipment, we look at 10-6, a
request for a vehicle. Member Cochran, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I know the Cost of Government expressed the concern with fleet
management and the kind of excessive, and Water Department asked for new vehicles. I know
one burned. But this, and this is for, you know, I'm just...thought we were like trying to cutback
but here we are with another proposal for a new vehicle again.
MR. REGAN: Okay. May I, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: We have no vehicles, with the exception of vans that we have in MIS. Department of
Management does not have a vehicle. So if we have to use a vehicle, I use my own car. If my
staff needs to go somewhere, they use their own car. So we, we don't have that, I don't want to
call it...we don't have access to those, those vehicles. It became evident during this last tsunami
that we experienced that how difficult it would, how difficult it was to use a private vehicle to
get around. We had to do a number of inspections immediately after, once I guess I wouldn't
wanna say the all clear, but once sun...once the sun came up, myself and a number of other
individuals were out doing, you know, quick assessments, providing feedback to the EOC. And,
you know, fortunately, I was able to have access to a vehicle, had I not had access to a vehicle
and I had to do that I would have been using my own personal vehicle, and that's fine, I, I have
no problem with that. But I don't think it's fair to ask my staff to use their own personal vehicles
to do things such as these types of assessments or do site visits or, you know, things like that. So
I, I apologize for having to put this into the budget but...and I understand if it's something that
you don't feel is something you could support; however, I'm asking for your consideration
because the truth of the matter is that our program does, does not have a vehicle. I'm not asking
for this vehicle to be a personal vehicle for me to take home. As a Director, I'm just merely
asking for this vehicle to be something that the program has, that it can access if necessary. So, I
ask, I ask for your consideration, I understand if you can't support it, but I, I do, you know,
humbly ask for that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Regan -MR. REGAN: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --whenever you use your personal vehicle -MR. REGAN: Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --do you claim mileage?
MR. REGAN: I do not, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Department, no employee claim mileage or are they able to claim
mileage?
MR. REGAN: They are able to claim mileage. I'm not sure of the Civil Service employees that we
have, how many are doing so. But I will share with you that, you know, I go on numerous site
visits, I, you know, use my vehicle for, for County related business and I, I do not submit for
mileage.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
MR. REGAN: Oh, can I mention one thing, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, go ahead. Yeah.
MR. REGAN: I'm sorry. And my vehicle doesn't have four-wheel drive, so I just, you know, if it did,
if I had a truck or whatever, you know, I wouldn't be, you know, I wouldn't care.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Did you, Mr. Managing Director, did you take a look at
and do a cost analysis on a regular four-wheel drive vehicle versus the...looks like you're
looking for a hybrid, and see what kind of savings in the prices we would get versus the cost of
gas?
MR. REGAN: Yeah. I, I appreciate that. Chair, may I -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: --respond quickly? I guess, you know, the reason why we had submitted for this
particular type of vehicle was to, to show the other departments the effectiveness of these types
of vehicles and, and the long range or the long term cost savings. Right now, as you know, cost
of gas has gone up substantially and it's looking like it's gonna go up, you know, more as we
move forward with these different conflicts that are occurring in the Middle East. Already, you
know, oil is at over...well over $100 a barrel, right, and so we're all feeling it right now at the
pump. So when we requested this we did so with the idea of trying to find a vehicle that other
departments could look to as a, as a possible replacement vehicle as well as a vehicle that's
gonna be efficient in terms of fuel usage. We haven't done a specific analysis if that's what
you're asking, but... and if this isn't something again that you can't support, we understand, but
ultimately we were just trying to set a, an example for other departments with regards to a
vehicle.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually, I do support it because I do have a hybrid vehicle, two of
them, and, and they are significant savings in gas, maybe not on the mainland before, but here
certainly before and now with the prices. So thank you for making that choice.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You done? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director, I don't know if it belongs to County or it's a vehicle that's on
loan to the County, but doesn't your office or, or the Mayor's Office have a hybrid vehicle for
use, that green and white vehicle? Can you, can you give us some -MR. REGAN: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --understanding of if we own it? Is it a demonstration vehicle? Can you
give us some...
MR. REGAN: May I, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: That particular Prius that you're talking about, I understand that it was a test bed
essentially for some new battery technology that's coming out, or scheduled to come out, and
that vehicle was originally I believe, I believe it was Public Works who purchased that vehicle
originally. And I think that it is on loan to the Mayor's Office at this point in time. I don't
believe that it's actually been transferred to the Mayor's Office. I'd have to look in a little bit
more detail on that, but I just recently did the inventory for the Mayor's Office and I, I don't
recall seeing that particular vehicle on the inventory list that we're required to certify. So I'm
thinking that that vehicle is still, you know, perhaps in Public Works' inventory, yeah, and that
vehicle...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But that's a County vehicle though, Mr. Regan?
MR. REGAN: It is a County vehicle. Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. Yeah. And it is owned, I believe it is owned by the County and we have some
partnership with one of the schools that created the or put the battery in there to be able to test it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So is that a...at this point in time, I would call it like a fleet vehicle,
anyone within the, the Office of the Mayor could, could use it for County business?
MR. REGAN: Yes, I mean at this point in time I know that the Executive Assistants utilize it to go out
and, you know, for various different meetings. I know that, I believe the Budget Director has
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utilized the vehicle, no you haven't used it, okay. Well, but it is there for, for staff to be able to
utilize. Yeah, it is accessible -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: --if it's there and available.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
MR. REGAN: I do know that the Mayor does not use the vehicle, so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I just hope by the time we get to making some determination
on vehicles, Chairman, that maybe Mr. Regan can assist us or with Mr. Baz, some of the
advantages to move toward a consolidation of models and types and maybe go through a lease
purchase option versus an outright County purchase. And we got, I mean look at our parking lot.
You can see what 10, 12, 15 different models -MR. REGAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that maintenance has to be prepared to repair and maintain, so I think
we're at a point where we need to look at various options of... from purchasing also, Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And you, Mr. Hokama, stole my question so I really,
you know, sorry, I wanted to know about that vehicle. But I do have another question in, in the
same frame of thought. You know, this County has, and as we had heard, a lot of vehicles and I
understand that some of the departments now, directors, district managers, district supervisors
are no longer taking vehicles home, they're left at the base yards or left at different locations.
And so my question to you is, could one of those with the limited use of that vehicle be
transferred to the Mayor's Department, because every time we buy another car, Mr. Hokama
pointed out the maintenance issue, but it's just another expense to have one more car, and we
already were told we had what one car for every two employees or something like that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Three.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I mean...oh, three employees, whatever it is, I mean it's a
astronomical number and I see 'em at night. When I come here, drive by War Memorial, I no
care where I, I see a lot of vehicles sitting there not being utilized. Now maybe during the day
they're necessary, but, you know, so could some of these vehicles or some have some kind of
usage where you folks could have access for emergency purposes?
MR. REGAN: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From these various Departments maybe non-essential, supervisory
positions that may not have a problem. Have you looked into that?
MR. REGAN: Uh-huh. Chair, if I can?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: Yeah, thank you, Member Victorino, for that question. The answer is yes. In fact, when
I was here, you know, under Arakawa I, that's the only way I can....
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. REGAN: You know, we, we did that, in fact. We got this old Ford LTD, you know, former police
cruiser, you know, that we utilize, that was at the end of its life cycle, and that was what we were
able to get, basically, at that point. I don't, I don't even know where that vehicle is right now.
It's probably, you know, been scrapped, because it was unsafe when we got it and, you know,
I'm sure that it's like, you know, it's, you know, not being utilized at this point as well.
But...can we have access to other vehicles? Sure. I mean we are the Department of
Management. We do provide oversight. Will those vehicles be available to us when we need
them? I don't know. Will they have the capabilities that we need to be able to get some place if
we need to go somewhere? I, I don't know. That's why we're, we're asking for this specialized
vehicle, so that we know that, that this vehicle that we have access to, we will have access to it
when we need it, not at the, I guess restrictions perhaps that might be if, if another department
needs that particular other vehicle. But if, if another department is willing to transfer a
four-wheel drive, whether it's an SUV or some kind of vehicle like that to us, that's in decent
shape that's not going to be a hazard, we would except it, sure. Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you and, and, and I guess that was where the question
was going.
MR. REGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean no offense, you know, to any department, but there are
vehicles that are coming to the end for their functional purpose, however, are still in good shape.
We sell 'em off, we auction them off, so I know they're not totally dysfunctional or unsafe. Just
that, idea is that if you need it only for certain reasons, such as you have stated, it's not
something you going take home every day, not something you going drive around town every
day, then why do we need another $36,000 spent on a new vehicle? I understand what you need
and I think you deserve it, your Department should have vehicles accessible to you for these
purpose, but like myself and others in this, in this Chamber, we don't have County vehicles, we
have personal vehicle. I go out to a lot of site visits, I go out to a lot of different issues and that's
the way it is, many times I don't claim miles either. That's not the question, the question is if
you need something we have it available, let's somehow get it transferred over, let's save instead
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of spending for something new, if possible. And that's, you know, that's the only question I
have. If it's possible let's do it, if not, hey, then I, I won't be opposing it, but I just think
sometimes we don't, we don't spend some time looking into these other options, which I think
you're now considering and I appreciate that, Mr. Regan. It's nothing against you. It's just that I
believe the County has to start looking more as a global universal opportunity to use our
equipment and our vehicles for other purposes and then sitting, like I say when you driving
around, you go to almost any County facility there are vehicles sitting there, day and night. My
question is why and can that be utilized somewhere else? Thank you, Mr. Chair. I appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Regan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And maybe you can help, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Volunteer your car once in a while.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The grey car. No, wait, wait. I volunteer my grey car. It is paid
for, I owe nothing on it, it still runs good, and I take that off roading at times, and that buggah
can go. That Ford Taurus can go, has gone many places.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and, and, Mr. Victorino, we do accept donations.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Along the same lines, I... just to put it in
perspective, a quick calculation with a $36,000 purchase we could also purchase enough gasoline
to take a regular vehicle almost 150,000 miles. So I'm assuming that the person, the Executive
Assistant that is assigned to review and get a handle on the fleet of, what, roughly 1,200 cars,
I'm assuming that he knows of the need, for your Department to have access to a vehicle?
MR. REGAN: Yes, she does.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Is it safe to assume that, that, that person has the ability to make
recommendations of where they can, what they can do to transfer vehicles? Because if that
person has been reviewing the, the situation for a month or a month and half, I'd like to think
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that we could have found a vehicle. Like Mr. Victorino and others, I think you should have a
vehicle. I just have a real tough time spending the money to, to get a new one without first
making sure that we've got something in our stable of cars that can fulfill the needs that you, that
you have and should be able to take care of.
MR. REGAN: Yeah, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: I mean as I've, as I've I stated I mean I, I'm more than happy if we can find a vehicle
that's gonna meet our needs and it's not being utilized by the department. If they're willing to
transfer it to us, to accept that, you know, we've done it in the past and we're not afraid, you
know, we're, we're not, not saying, oh, I've gotta, you know, we gotta have a new vehicle. I
mean I totally understand where you're coming from. And if I can, if we can, you know, find
that vehicle then, you know, by all means we'll, we'll transfer that and I'll, I'll let you folks
know. Because it'll probably be before the end of this budget cycle or these deliberations, so if
it's not necessary, I will definitely let you know about that. You know...so...and in terms of the
project that we're working on right now, you know, we, we are going through the, the research
and analysis phase of the project so, you know, the staff member that we have assigned to it, you
know, she's going out and doing these site visits on her own. And if she comes across a vehicle,
you know, during those...while she's out there then, then terrific. But she's aware of our request
and so she is keeping her eyes open. The tough part is going to be selling the department who's
going to lose that vehicle, how important it is to give it to us. . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, I'm sure you'll have an opportunity to show just -MR. REGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --just how convincing you can be.
MR. REGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll? Members, that is all for the Administrative Program. Chair
intention is to go up to 1:00 and then we'll just break at 1:00, and then...anyway, we need to
catch our flight at 4:00 p.m. at Kahului Airport. But before we go into MIS, we'll take a five
minutes? Five minutes recess. We'll reconvene at 12:15. This meeting is in recess.
. (gavel).. .
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RECESS:

12:11 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:17 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, some of the, just to let you know, some of the Members had requested
that they need to leave a little earlier. Mr. Carroll has a problem, not has a problem, but he needs
to leave probably like quarter to, so he can get back to Hana and do his preparation along with
Mr. Victorino. So we'll go probably...we'll try see how far we can get with MIS. If not, you
know, if we need to come back for the equipment, we can do that tomorrow morning and we just
cover A and B Accounts. Tomorrow morning, the Chair's intention is to finish up, if we need to,
with MIS and then take GIS. So Staff if you can notify--who's that?--Fire maybe about 11:00 or
11:30. Okay, thank you. Mr. Baz, comments?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, we have Jacob Verkerke, the MIS Administrator to talk about the Division of
MIS within the Department of Management.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Verkerke?
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair and Council Members. For the benefit of some of the new
Members on Council, I'll give a little bit of a background of what the MIS Division is all about.
We are the Central IT Agency within the Administration. We provide IT services to the
departments. What we're really trying to do is help departments figure out if and how
technology can help them achieve their business objectives. So we start from that business
perspective and then look for the appropriate technology to facilitate their operations, and as you
may appreciate, under the last few years of budget reductions, that overall has become quite
expansive. Many departments are looking to offset losses in financial and staffing resources
with increased reliance on technology.
The service we provide, we have been working very hard to provide structure to the management
of IT services. We're using a number of well established best practices and, and the work of
others, in other words, a body of work called IT service management. If you've had a chance to
look at Internet site, we have published many documents on that site that, that reflect the work
that's been done. We have a Strategic Plan that will cover the next four years. We have an
Action Plan of how that Strategic Plan will translate initiatives for the upcoming fiscal year. We
have an extensive amount of Policies and Procedures we have published there, and all of that is
based on the work that we've done to articulate our Catalog of services. There's 30-plus services
articulated in that Catalog and you will appreciate that most of the services are actually
compound services. They rely on behind-the-scenes, back-of-the-house type services to make
delivery of service to the business units of the Departments possible. It's a work in progress and
it will never end, because there is a key component that, that addresses continual service
improvement, and so this will be really the approach that MIS Division will take to deliver these
services.
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As I mentioned, the cutbacks have had an impact on the departments and they've come to us to
see what we can do to help them. Of course the cutbacks have also had an impact on our ability
to provide those services. While the demand goes up, our budget has gone down. Since the
actuals of Fiscal Year 2008 to the budget amount for Fiscal 2011, we have seen a 20 percent
reduction in our resources, so it's a challenge for us. How have we dealt with that? We have
looked at extending the life of equipment. We've looked at non-financial means of providing
services. We've looked to reduce the cost of maintenance of equipment by relying less on
professional services and more on internal staff development. We've been able to reduce our
labor cost a little bit by looking at internal staff promotions and development. Consequently,
our, our training budget has gone up a little bit, but in the long term that will pay major
dividends.
We are now at a point and, and I hinted at that in my comments last year, where we are pushing
the useful life of equipment beyond reasonable boundaries. Our primary focus has been on
keeping the lights on in the Data Center and maintaining the infrastructure so that delivery of IT
capabilities to various outlying departments, the increase of wireless access points, to increase
the efficiency of staff in other departments has been supported. But we're at a point now where
we can't keep doing that. We have...had to neglect the maintenance of the desktop, the end-user
equipment, and we're still trying to replace equipment that is seven, eight years old. And for
those you that have an appreciation of how fast technology changes, you will recognize that there
are going to be some challenges making that equipment work with new operating systems, with
new software, with new accessory equipment for which there are no drivers in the generation of
equipment that we dealing with. So the concept of "pay me now or pay me later" is definitely
gonna come into play this year. And that will...part of that is...or part of what you see in our
budget this year, an increase in equipment is, is aimed at trying to prevent more lost of
productivity than we already seeing.
What's happening with a lot of that equipment is instead of replacing it because the financial
resources were not available, we're repairing it, using parts from equipment that is probably no
longer useful but has similar components. The end result is that, that MIS staff is spending more
time repairing equipment than they would have had to spend on replacing equipment and
providing a generation of equipment to end users that is appropriate. And of course the same
loss of productivity is experienced by the users of that equipment. They have to send in their
equipment more and more for repairs, and at some point, it's really beginning to affect their
ability to do their job.
So I'm hoping that this year we can turn the tide a little bit in our practice of trying to stretch the
life of this equipment more and more and that we can start making some in-roads in the backlog
of replacement that we're facing with. If we wait too much longer, we may be faced with a
situation where the resources at MIS, both financial and staff-wise are not going to be able to
replace all of the equipment that really, really needs to be replaced all at the same time. And we
may end up having to hire additional resources, vendors, what have you, to give us a hand with
that, which would kind of defeat the purpose of trying to save money to begin with. That's all I
have for you right now, so I'll be happy to answer any questions you may have.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you can turn to Page 10-9, that's the A Account area.
We'll start off with, Mr. Couch, if you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. No, it's just a comment. Being in the IT field it looks like
your salaries are fairly low compared to the outside world.
MR. VERKERKE: Was that supposed to make me feel better? No.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. VERKERKE: But it's an important point that you bring up. We hear a lot of discussion in the
press and in other venues about the need to adjust public sector salaries. Nationwide, public
sector trails to private sector by about 10 percent, according to studies that I've read. Locally, I
think that is probably closer to 20 percent, where especially in skilled IT jobs, the discrepancy
between what the County is paying and what is out there, when the times are good is
considerable. So the public sector employees have sacrificed some of that income for the
promise of stability and retirement benefits and what have you, and, and sometimes that point is
overlooked, so I appreciate the opportunity to be able to stress that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good point. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Verkerke, tell us what is a buyer in your Division, please?
MR. VERKERKE: Thirty-one thousand dollars a year, thirty-one thousand two hundred twelve.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What does that person buy?
MR. VERKERKE: Just about all the computer equipment for the County. All the departments go
through MIS for assistance with hardware, software, peripherals, even digital cameras,
sometimes even consumables such as toners and what have you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which is separate from what Mr. King does in procurement?
MR. VERKERKE: We get the requisitions ready for the Purchasing Division to create POs from. So
we do all the research on proper models and get pricing and make sure that the County gets the
best deal for the particular need. Then associated with that, is also receiving function, so we
keep track of that. There's been mention of MIS's efforts in maintaining an inventory of
computer equipment that goes through the buyer as well. And we work with Finance on
maintaining their records.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, because you mentioned about the speed of technology changing in
the field regarding equipment, computers and what not and you have a position for a Buyer, but
I'm hoping when we reach your request for that half million dollars, you can tell us why it's
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replacement versus a lease. Since technology is changing so fast, why we wouldn't go to a lease
option instead?
MR. VERKERKE: Well, I'll give you initially the same answer that Mr. Taylor gave you. Leases are
typically structured for a life cycle, a duration that is in favor of the vendor. The County cannot
afford to replace equipment at, at frequency that the vendor would like us to replace equipment.
So as I mentioned, we have desktops at seven, eight years old. If we'd been making lease
payments for seven or eight years, we would have twice bought that piece of equipment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's good news because that means we really don't have to buy all
brand-new equipment, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And just to add to that, Mr. Verkerke, these
replacements that you bring in and these replacements you're asking us for, again basically
we've gotten our monies worth, our useful life of these various computers and other equipment
that you're stating are some six, seven and eight years old. Is that what you're telling us?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. VERKERKE: In general, that is the case. Some of the equipment you see listed here is part of our
Data Center or essential infrastructure, and we are taking less chances extending the life cycle of
some of those, because they're so critical to the operations of this whole organization. So we
have servers that we will replace after five years. A lot of it is dictated by the willingness of the
vendors to extend maintenance support contracts, which imply a commitment that they will have
replacement part for us. Some equipment is on a shorter cycle, but in general, we've pushed it to
the limits of both functional and reliability considerations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this buyer that Mr. Hokama brought up, he keeps abreast or
she keeps abreast--he or she, 1, I don't know which--abreast with all the various components and
changes that are, you know, on a daily basis really and the way the tech industry is moving,
keeps up so that we're getting the "best deal you can get". You know, because computers, I
have looked at them and they've gotten bigger, stronger, faster, and everything else and on the
other hand, got cheaper. So this person is basically charged with that task?
MR. VERKERKE: Not really. This person is in charge for the actual process of procurement. We have
a staff of analysts that will stay abreast of developments and technology and the needs of the
organization. So they will provide the buyer with the minimum requirements and, and models
and, and what have you, and then the buyer will go and approach vendors to find the best cost
and, and what the various extended maintenance agreements would have to cost. So the
responsibility for selecting the appropriate technology is with the staff of analysts we have.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so they do that and forward it on to this individual and he in
turn hits the vendors, as you were saying, for the best price for what we're looking for.
MR. VERKERKE: And, and they do that, the analysts do that in response to the, the needs of the
departments, the business requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And do we tend to use specific vendors because again in a
lot of cases in the business world, the more you buy the better prices you get, generally speaking.
Interchangeable parts or reliable maintenance is a lot better if you're one than if you're shooting
all over the place. It that basically the philosophy of the department?
MR. VERKERKE: It's part of it. We, we look at multi-state purchasing agreements that exist to get the
best buy. Margins in technology are so slim nowadays that there is not really a lot of room for
bargaining.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. VERKERKE: So we look at the expense of...if we buy from a vendor that is cheaper by $50 or
$100, what is the cost to us to have to be competent in the support and the maintenance of many
brands of equipment? Usually, it's more expensive to try to maintain that competence than it is
to just save that, you know, slimmest of margin between equipment. And we need to have
compatibility of course with whatever is already in place.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Verkerke. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I don't know the County operations all that well at
this point, but I'm assuming that your Department is responsible for the computer systems at the
various waste treatment...the water... Wastewater treatment facilities and... is that correct?
MR. VERKERKE: To some degree. The SCADA systems , the real hard core operational systems for
water treatment and wastewater treatment are under the control of staff within the Department.
We're responsible for the infrastructure that allows connectivity between the various plants back
to the Central Command Center, that Division of Wastewater treatment has built in the Kihei
plant. We're responsible for connectivity to vendors on the mainland through the Internet and
what have you. But some critical operational systems are not supported by MIS 'cause we could
not maintain or even acquire the level of experience and expertise on those systems to do the
right job, so water treatment, wastewater treatment are prime examples where we don't really get
into that, but we will assist with the purchase of equipment based on specifications from the
departments or their vendors.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So roughly how many employees in the County operation, under
which MIS is in control, how many employees have access to computers roughly? How many
computers.. .
MR. VERKERKE: Out of the 2,500 County employees, there is about 1,500 employees that have
access to computers. Not all of them have their own. For instance, Fire Department with the
different watches that they have, they share computers within the station. But we usually go by
the, the count of e-mail accounts that we have and that's around 1,500.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So is that roughly 800 computers or is it?
MR. VERKERKE: It's over a 1,000.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Verkerke, knowing that the equipment we are dealing
with is six, seven, eight years old and, and, and, you know, I don't know if it goes beyond that,
what we're looking at in terms of your budget, your submitted budget, is this something you
submitted knowing you're dealing with old equipment or is this something that was modified by
the Administration?
MR. VERKERKE: It's been a discussion between the Administration and myself as to what is the
minimum appropriate level of equipment to replace this year, and I think we've come to an
agreement that is workable. If you're asking me to tell you that I would like more money, I'd be
happy to oblige.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I'm not telling you to tell me anything. I'm telling you, you know,
you need to understand if you're citing a need, then don't play games with us. Tell us what the
need is, because if you're gonna come back next year and bleed on the floor again, it's gonna be
harder to believe you, because you never told us the truth to begin with. So what I'm asking you
is, is this what you actually requested versus somebody else modified it for you and, and giving
us, you know, an incomplete picture? I'm just asking for the truth, Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Okay, there's two parts to the answer that I'm gonna give you. First of all, what's
in the budget is more than I originally submitted to the Tavares Administration. Secondly, the
aspect of playing games, last year, I told you the same story only with perhaps the connotation
that we will do our upmost best to make do with a flat budget. And your reaction was cut, to cut
$150,000 from no more than $500,000 of discretionary money in my budget. My budget to me
the last year was in the order of $2.9 million ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Verkerke, times have changed.
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MR. VERKERKE: No, I have the right to finish answering the question.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Times have changed. We have more monies in the budget this year
so...
MR. VERKERKE: No, but I'm still addressing your, your comment about playing games.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Go right ahead.
MR. VERKERKE: In my $2.9 million budget request last year, there was a million and a half of Salary,
there was about eight to nine hundred thousand dollars of fixed obligations such as maintenance
contracts. So the remaining $500,000, five to six hundred thousand dollars was reduced by you,
this Committee by at least 30 percent. When you full on knew 'cause I'd already mentioned it
and I had a discussion with Member Nishiki about that, that we are going to wait...reach a
situation where the debt that we postponed in replacing equipment is going to be too big to pay.
So I'm not really sure who's playing games here, and I don't know, think it's correct for you to
accuse me of playing games. I'm doing what I can with the resources that are being offered to
me. If you're concerned that next year we need more money than we can come up with, then
you have the ability to add money to the budget, I'd be very happy to accept that. But I do not
appreciate being accused of playing games.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, let me, let me just get rid of you and go to the Director.
Mr. Director, who's appropriated, whose request is this in terms of an appropriation recognized
for this Department based on the information that the equipment is, is aging for us?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Council Chair Mateo, the proposed Equipment Budget that we, we have presented, like
Mr. Verkerke mentioned, is a collaboration between the Administration and their Department,
their Division. They... we basically...I don't have in front of me their exact transmittal to us
with the equipment requests in there. We did reduce their equipment request a little bit. I think
they requested maybe about 10 percent more so than we gave them. As far as the replacement
equipment, what you see in the top of Page 10-13, that we did not reduce. We did feel that the
equipment is getting old. We see it, we have to deal with it on a daily basis, and the, the
slowness of the computer is in the...the equipment breaking down and them having to come and
fix. I mean my, one of my Budget Specialists had to get her computer fixed three times
during...trying to create this budget so it was a difficult thing that I saw personally, and I do
support them getting replacement equipment for the PCs as, as they do age and, and we
definitely want to make sure that we have. The County is very dependent on technology. If we
didn't have the computers and the e-mails and networks and things that we depend on, on a daily
basis, the productivity of the employees would go down incredibly. And so we understand that,
that productivity is dependent on the equipment that they have, the tools that they have.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. So knowing that the County does in fact has
additional funds, would not it have been better to increase this specific need, because it impacts
everybody throughout the County in terms of IT needs?
-71-
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MR. BAZ: Thank you. Like I mentioned, the request for replacement equipment, we did fund
100 percent of what they requested. The...I don't have it in front of me the exact details of what
we did reduce. I think we reduced one vehicle that they had requested replacement of and a
couple other minor items, maybe some licenses and things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Please confine your questions to Account A, yeah, please.
Mr. Carroll? Yeah. Any questions regards to the A Account? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I wanted to address the performance measures in sort of the intro
portion. And I just wanted a sort of clarification on reliability of network and the reliability of
servers, because I show a decrease on your projection for performance measure for that on 12-7.
So I just wanted to know is that good to have a decrease on those two items?
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. VERKERKE: The projected number here takes in account the increased age of equipment, and it
takes in account efforts to replace some of the equipment, which may or may not translate into
interruptions of service, depending on the size of the job and the timing that we can apply to that.
So we didn't want to promise more than we...at this point, we are confident in being able to
achieve, but we will strive of course to maintain the same level that we had before.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. So it's I guess basically in determining whether the
replacements will happen or not. You just weren't comfortable -MR. VERKERKE: That will have impact, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in giving the figures?
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Again, Mr. Verkerke, on the performance measures, are
you taking into account the increased use of either tablet devices or smartphones in your
network? I'm assuming that's going in there. That's why some of those decrease as well, just
the technology is rapidly increasing and not having the funding to keep up with that?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Couch, it's, it's an example of some of the challenges that we face and that
will...technology will add to our workload. So it will have the impact that our response time
may go down, because we will deal with a greater variety of technology that we may not be
completely up to speed on. We're always kind of, you know, a little bit behind the eight ball,
because technology changes faster than we can arrange for training and what have you. Plus we
have to guess at what technology is gonna stick around and which isn't.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I, and I can appreciate that as well because you don't want to be
on the bleeding edge, you wanna just be on the safer edge. Sometimes it can backfire if we try to
keep up. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on the A Account. If not, the
Chair is going to stop right here, and tomorrow morning at 10:00, we'll continue with the
Managing Director's Office and MIS. We'll complete the B Account as well as the equipment
request, and we'll take after that, the GIS in its entirety and then the Fire Department soon after
we complete with the managed, Department of Managing Director, so...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You going take the CIP also Chairman or later?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Along with the CIP, yeah. I understand that there's several CIP for this area.
Yeah, we'll take care of the CIP.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Looking forward to that, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, Chair is gonna call the meeting at a close. We do
have a meeting at Helene Hall in Hana, 6:00, and our flight leaves at 4:00 this afternoon. I
understand that some of you are driving, please drive carefully, and we'll see you in Hana. The
meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee is now adjourned . . . (gavel).. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: GCB, RC, and MPV)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ADJOURN: 12:47 p.m.

APPROVED:

JO. PH PO TANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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